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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Union Bank of Taiwan

We have audited the accompanying balance shedtimioh Bank of Taiwan (the “Bank”) as of
December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the related statenoé income, changes in stockholders’
equity and cash flows for the years then ended.es&liinancial statements are the responsibility
of the Bank’s management. Our responsibility isetgress an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits. However, we didumit the financial statements as of and for
the year ended December 31, 2010 of some equithadeinvestees: Union Bills Finance
Corporation, Union Finance International (H.K.) lifed, and Union Real-Estate Management
Corporation. The carrying amount of these equigthad investments was 0.04% (NT$147,266
thousand) of the Bank’s total assets as of Dece®be?010. The loss from these equity-method
investments was 1.26% (NT$23,181 thousand) of tleap income in 2010. The financial
statements of these investees were audited by atltitors, whose reports have been furnished to
us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to tunts pertaining to these investees and to these
investees’ information mentioned in Note 35, isdshsolely on the reports of the other auditors.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the KR@leverning the Audit of Financial Statements
of Financial Institutions by Certified Public Acamiants and auditing standards generally accepted
in the Republic of China. Those rules and starslegduire that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the cfalastatements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, onsalasis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An aaldib includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by managerasniell as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our aadidsthe reports of the other auditors provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

As stated in Notes 15 and 26 to the financial statgs, the Bank sold a part of its nonperforming
loans to an asset management company in 2006 hari8iaink deferred related losses, amortizable
over 60 months, as required by the Financial imstibh Consolidation Law. Had these losses not
been deferred, there would have been increases 966,261 thousand in 2011 and

NT$1,587,321 thousand in 2010 in pretax income.soAthe balances of the other assets and
unappropriated earnings as of December 31, 2010vi@ve decreased by NT$965,255 thousand.

In our opinion, based on our audits and the repafrithe other auditors, except for the deferred
losses on nonperforming loans described in theegiag paragraph, the financial statements
referred to in the first paragraph present faiiyall material respects, the financial position of
Union Bank of Taiwan as of December 31, 2011 arD2@nd the results of its operations and its
cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity the Regulations Governing the Preparation
of Financial Reports by Public Banks, the Critésiaverning the Preparation of Financial Reports
by Securities Firms, requirements of the Businessofinting Law and Guidelines Governing

Business Accounting relevant to financial accountistandards, and accounting principles
generally accepted in the Republic of China.
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We have also audited the consolidated financialestants of Union Bank of Taiwan and
subsidiaries as of and for the years ended Deceg&ihe011 and 2010, on which we have issued a
qualified opinion in our report dated March 13, 201

As discussed in Note 3 to the financial statememsnisJanuary 1, 2011, Union Bank of Taiwan
adopted the revised Statement of Financial AccagnBtandards (SFAS) No. 34 - “Financial

Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” and tlynissued SFAS No. 41 - “Operating
Segments.”

March 13, 2012

Notice to Readers

The accompanying financial statements are interafég to present the financial position, results

of operations and cash flows in accordance withoacating principles and practices generally

accepted in the Republic of China and not thoseryf other jurisdictions. The standards,

procedures and practices to audit such financiatesnents are those generally accepted and
applied in the Republic of China.

For the convenience of readers, the auditors’ ré@ord the accompanying financial statements
have been translated into English from the origi@linese version prepared and used in the
Republic of China. If there is any conflict betwelke English version and the original Chinese
version or any difference in the interpretationtioé two versions, the Chinese-language auditors’
report and financial statements shall prevail.
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UNION BANK OF TAIWAN

BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2010
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Par Vale)

ASSETS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Note 4)

DUE FROM THE CENTRAL BANK AND OTHER BANKS (Notes &nd 26)

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LSS
(Notes 2, 6 and 30)

SECURITIES PURCHASED UNDER RESELL AGREEMENTS (Nofes
and 28)

RECEIVABLES, NET (Notes 2, 7, 8 and 26)

DISCOUNTS AND LOANS, NET (Notes 2, 8, 26 and 30)
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS (Notes 2, 9, 26nd 30)
HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS (Notes 2, 10 and 30)

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR BY THE EQUITY METHOD (Net 2
and 11)

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS, NET (Notes 2, 12, 13, 27da80)
Financial assets carried at cost
No active market debt instruments
Others
Other financial assets, net
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (Notes 2, 14, 26 and 28)
Cost
Land
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Transportation equipment
Leasehold improvements
Less: Accumulated depreciation
Prepayments for equipment
Net property and equipment
GOODWILL (Notes 2 and 16)
OTHER ASSETS (Notes 2, 15 and 24)

TOTAL

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofitla@cial statements.

(With Deloitte & Touche audit report dated March 2812)

2011 2010

Amount Amount
8,390,592 8,944,278
101,781,769 61,324,277
8,167,543 3,017,823
251,626 39,500
15,086,661 16,808,438
190,679,993 189,657,099
7,516,896 6,230,049
1,313,015 3,272,634
1,114,794 1,050,576
450,451 452,581
44,723,018 50,878,823
4,457,747 5,805,683
49,631,216 57,137,087
3,530,860 3,529,565
5,048,139 4,980,750
1,368,261 1,409,042
262,815 267,157
346,487 332,035
10,556,562 10,518,549
2,612,672 2,467,723
7,943,890 8,050,826
12,811 38,657
7,956,701 8,089,483
2,119,709 2,374,485
3,714,937 5,127,948
$ 397,725,452 $ 363,073,677

% Increase
(Decrease)

(6)
66

171

537

(10

21

(60)

(12)
23)

(13)

©)
)

(1)
(67)

)
(11
(28)

10
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LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

LIABILITIES
Call loans and due to banks (Notes 17 and 26)
Financial liabilities at fair value througlofit or loss (Notes 2, 6
and 30)
Securities sold under repurchase agreementsgRciad 28)
Payables (Notes 18 and 26)
Deposits and remittances (Notes 19, 26 and 30)
Bank debentures (Notes 20 and 30)

Other financial liabilities (Notes 26 and 30)
Other liabilities (Note 2)

Total liabilities

STOCKHOLDERS'’ EQUITY (Notes 2 and 22)
Capital stock
Common stock at par value of NT$10.00harized -3,000,000 thousan
shares; issued and outstanding - 1,645,991 thogwrds
Preferred stock
Total capital stock
Capital surplus
Donated capital
Treasury stock transactions
Total capital surplus
Retained earnings
Legal reserve
Special reserve
Unappropriated earnings
Total retained earnings
Other equity
Unrealized gain (loss) on financial instrutigen
Cumulative translation adjustments
Net loss not recognized as pension cost
Total other equity

Total stockholders’ equity

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS (Notes 2 a28)

TOTAL

2011 2010
Amount Amount
7,007,256 $ 10,287,346
33,852 51,584
34,522,173 33,596,926
5,847,302 3,838,896
322,756,910 289,605,854
4,890,000 4,890,000
337,852 318,027
365,444 390,574
375,760,789 342,979,207
16,459,908 16,459,908
3,025,088 3,025,088
19,484,996 19,484,996
1,398 1,398
32,413 32,413
33,811 33,811
352,978 -
874,473 -
1,826,615 1,176,594
3,054,066 1,176,594
(167,173) 155,124
(263,522) (640,778)
(177,51% (115,277
(608,210 (600,93)
21,964,663 20,094,470
$ 397,725,452 $ 363,073,677

% Increase
(Decrease)

(32)

(34)
3
52
11

6
(6)

10

160
(208)

(59)
54

10



UNION BANK OF TAIWAN

STATEMENTS OF INCOME
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2010
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earning Per Share)

2011 2010
Amount Amount %
INTEREST REVENUE (Notes 2 and 26) $ 9,546,475 $ 9,166,812 4
INTEREST EXPENSE (Note 26) 2,884,122 2,516,524 15
NET INTEREST 6,662,353 6,650,288 -
NET REVENUES OTHER THAN INTEREST
Commissions and fee revenues (Notes 2 and 26) 1,796,137 1,917,872 (6)
Commissions and fee expenses (Note 2) 427,296 431,668 (D)
Net commissions and fees 1,368,841 1,486,204 (8)
Gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss (Notes 2 and 6) 20,137 287,503 (93)
Realized gain on available-for-sale financial assets (Note 2) 60,147 162,912 (63)
Investment income recognized under the equity method, net
(Notes 2 and 11) 90,714 5,152 1,661
Foreign exchange gain (loss), net (Note 2) 238,789 (170,169) 240
Impairment losses, net (Notes 2, 15 and 16) (291,916) (279,606) 4
Gain on unquoted equity investments (Note 2) 29,757 129,128 (77)
Gain on investments with no active market 18,858 - -
Gain on disposal of collaterals assumed, net 712 145,813 (100)
Securities brokerage fee revenues, net (Note 26) 69,975 84,221 (a7)
Amortization of loss on disposal of nonperforming loans
(Note 15) (965,261) (1,587,321) (39)
Other noninterest net revenues (expenses) (Note 26) 3,786 (13,559 128
Total net revenues other than interest 644,539 250,278 158
Total net revenues 7,306,892 6,900,566 6
PROVISION (Note 8)
Allowance for doubtful accounts 121,500 409,502 (79
OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel expenses (Notes 2, 21 and 23) 2,346,886 2,148,514 9
Depreciation and amortization (Notes 2 and 23) 301,954 374,075 (29)
Others (Note 26) 2,315,172 2,135,963 8
Total operating expenses 4,964,012 4,658,552 7
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 2,221,380 1,832,512 21
INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Notes 2 and 24) 394,765 422,087 (6)
NET INCOME $ 1,826,615 $ 1,410,425 30

(Continued)
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UNION BANK OF TAIWAN

STATEMENTS OF INCOME
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2010
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earning Per Share)

2011 2010
Before After Before After
Tax Tax Tax Tax
EARNINGS PER SHARE (NEW TAIWAN
DOLLARS; Note 25)
Basic $ 124 $ 1.00 $ 1.20 $ 0.92
Diluted $ 1.14 $ 094 $ 1.00 $ 0.77
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
(With Deloitte & Touche audit report dated March 13, 2012)
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UNION BANK OF TAIWAN

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2010
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Other Equity
Retained Earnings (Accumulated Deficit) (Notes 2 and 22) Unrealized
Issued and Outstanding Issued and Outstanding Capital Surplus (Notes 2 and 22) Unappropriated Gain (Loss) Cumulative
Common Stock Preferred Stock (Note 22) Treasury Earnings on Financial Translation Net Loss Not Total
Shares Shares Donated Stock (Accumulated Assets (Notes 2,  Adjustment Recognized as Stockholders'
(In Thousands) Amount (In Thousands) Amount Capital Transaction Total Legal Reserve  Special Reserve Deficit) Total 9 and 30) (Note 2) Pension Cost Total Equity
BALANCE, JANUARY 1, 2010 1,918,824 $ 19,188,244 400,000 $ 4,000,000 $ 1,398 $ 32,413 $ 33,811 $ - $ - $ (5,651,650) $ (5,651,650) $ 17,065 $ 31,662 $ (88,902) $ (40,175) $ 17,530,230
Capital reduction to offset deficit (467,671) (4,676,712) (97,491) (974,912) - - - - - 5,651,624 5,651,624 - - - - -
Issuance of common stock for merger 194,838 1,948,376 - - - - - - - (233,805) (233,805) - - - - 1,714,571
Net income in 2010 - - - - - - - - - 1,410,425 1,410,425 - - - - 1,410,425
Change in unrealized gain on available-for-sale finassets - - - - - - - - - - - 127,783 - - 127,783 127,783
Change in recognition of equity-method investments - - - - - - - - - - - 10,276 (61,870) - (51,594) (51,594)
Change in net loss not recognized as pension cost - - - - - - - - - - - - - (26,375) (26,375) (26,375)
Change in translation adjustments - - - - - - - - - - - - (610,570 - (610,570 (610,570
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2010 1,645,991 16,459,908 302,509 3,025,088 1,398 32,413 33,811 - - 1,176,594 1,176,594 155,124 (640,778) (115,277) (600,931) 20,094,470
Appropriation of 2010 earnings
Legal reserve - - - - - - - 352,978 - (352,978) - - - - - -
Special reserve - - - - - - - - 823,616 (823,616) - - - - - -
Net income in 2011 - - - - - - - - - 1,826,615 1,826,615 - - - - 1,826,615
Change in unrealized loss on available-for-sale finasseta - - - - - - - - - - - (299,774) - - (299,774) (299,774)
Change in recognition of equity-method investments - - - - - - - - - - - (22,523) 23,096 - 573 573
Change in net loss not recognized as pension cost - - - - - - - - - - - - - (62,238) (62,238) (62,238)
Special reserve for default and securities trading losses - - - - - - - - 50,857 - 50,857 - - - - 50,857
Change in translation adjustments - - - - - - - - - - - - 354,160 - 354,160 354,160
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2011 1,645,991 $ 16,459,908 302,509 $ 3,025,088 $ 1,398 $ 32,413 $ 33,811 $ 352,978 $ 874,473 $ 1,826,615 $ 3,054,066 $ (167,173 $ (263,522 $ (177,515 $ (608,210 $ 21,964,663

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the finlesteizments.

(With Deloitte & Touche audit report dated March 13, 2012)
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UNION BANK OF TAIWAN

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2010
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

-120 -

2011 2010
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income $ 1,826,615 $ 1,410,425
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating
activities
Depreciation and amortization 301,954 374,075
Allowance for credit and other losses 122,734 423,484
Amortization of premium on available-for-sale financial assets 38,575 35,768
Amortization of premium on held-to-maturity investments 18,815 11,118
Amortization of discount on no-active market debt instruments (316,053) (76,088)
Valuation loss (gain) on financial assets and liabilities atlue
through profit or loss 72,865 (90,184)
Realized gain on sale of available-for-sale financial assets (19,847) (131,305)
Investment income recognized under the equity method, net (90,714) (5,152)
Cash dividends received from equity-method investees 25,611 21,917
Gain on sale of financial assets carried at cost - (83,905)
Gain on sale of debt instruments with no active market (18,858) -
Impairment losses on assets, net 291,916 279,606
Amortization of loss from disposal of nonperforming loans 965,261 1,587,321
Gain on disposal of collaterals assumed, net (712) (145,813)
Loss (gain) on disposal of property and equipment, net (674) 6,846
Loss on the obsolescence of property and equipment 810 13,210
Deferred income taxes 223,403 219,885
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Held-for-trading financial assets (2,572,520) (2,227,711)
Receivables 1,621,777 3,672,716
Held for trading financial liabilities 3,942 (19,047)
Payables 2,008,406 532,168
Accrued pension cost (1,056 (99
Net cash provided by operating activities 4,502,250 5,809,237
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Increase in due from the Central Bank and other banks (40,457,492) (2,975,621)
Decrease (increase) in financial assets designated as atlfeir v
through profit or loss (2,671,739) 50,313
Decrease (increase) in securities purchased under reselhagtse (212,126) 250,453
Increase in discounts and loans (1,048,064) (20,100,442)
Proceeds of the disposal of available-for-sale financial assets 3,496,832 11,869,859
Capital return on available-for-sale financial assets 983,000 295,000
Acquisition of available-for-sale financial assets (6,085,181) (6,557,087)
Capital return on held-to-maturity investments 2,005,929 7,208,662
Acquisition of held-to-maturity investments (52,125) (305,254)
Proceeds of the disposal of no active market debt instruments 4,309,903 -
Acquisition of investments accounted for by the equity method - (60,550)
Proceeds of the capital reduction of investee 2,130 3,195
(Continued)



UNION BANK OF TAIWAN

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2010
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Received principal on debt instruments with no active market
Acquisition of debt instruments with no active market
Decrease (increase) in other financial assets

Acquisition of property and equipment

Proceeds of the disposal of property and equipment
Proceeds of the disposal of collaterals assumed

Increase in other assets

Acquisition of cash and equivalents from merger

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Decrease in call loans and due to banks
Increase in securities sold under repurchase agreements
Increase in deposits and remittances
Increase in other financial liabilities
Decrease in other liabilities
Issuance of bank debentures
Decrease in bank debentures

Net cash provided by financing activities
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR
SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Interest paid
Income tax paid

2011 2010

$ 18,181,193 $ 51,461,371
(16,000,380)  (52,862,192)
1,334,936 (841,677)
(87,915) (114,737)
785 32,018
215,683 1,043,914
(60,558) (24,916)

- 896,765
(36,145,189 _ (10,730,92B
(3,280,090) (7,801,427)
925,247 3,504,638
33,151,056 18,481,663
19,825 74,349
(28,429) (343,568)
2,000,000 -
(2,000,00p (5,000,00p
30,787,609 8,915,655
301,644 (610,570
(553,686) 3,383,396
8,944,278 5,560,882
$ 8,390,592 $ 8,944,278
$ 2800638 $ 2,553,928
$ 191962 $ 53,165

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

(With Deloitte & Touche audit report dated March 13, 2012)
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UNION BANK OF TAIWAN

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2010
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless State@therwise)

1. ORGANIZATION AND OPERATIONS

Union Bank of Taiwan (the “Bank”) obtained approval from the Migistf Finance (MOF) to be
established on August 1, 1991 and was incorporated on December 31, 199artedt gperations on
January 21, 1992.

The Bank engages in activities allowed under the Banking Ldughwcover deposits, loans, discounts,
remittances, acceptances, issuance of guarantees and lkeftt@redit, short-term bills transactions,
investments, foreign exchange transactions, savings, trust, etc.

On the Bank’s merger with Chung Shing Bank, the Bank took over all of the aisddliies and operating
units of Chung Shing Bank on March 19, 2005.

The Bank merged with the Union Bills Finance CorporationKUJ&n August 16, 2010, with the Bank as
the survivor entity. Please refer to Note 34 for more merger infarma

As of December 31, 2011, the Bank’s operating units included BanKiugt, Wealth Management,
Security Finance, Bills Finance, International Banking Departnoénthe Head Office, an Offshore
Banking Unit (OBU), two overseas representative office¢long Kong and Vietnam, and 87 domestic
branches.

The operations of the Bank’s Trust Department are (1) trustdsssplanning, managing and operating;
and (2) custody of non-discretionary trust funds in domestic andeageecurities and mutual funds.
These foregoing operations are regulated under the Banking Law and Trust Law.

The Bank’s shares are traded on the Taiwan Stock Exchange.

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Bank had 3,111 and 2,975 employees, respectively.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Bank’s financial statements have been prepared in confowitliythe Regulations Governing the
Preparation of Financial Reports by Public Banks, the Cri@oaerning the Preparation of Financial
Reports by Securities Firms, Business Accounting Law, Guidetdm&rning Business Accounting and
accounting principles generally accepted in the Republic of ChinaROC

Since the operating cycle cannot be reasonably identifigteibanking industry, accounts included in the
Bank’s financial statements were not classified as cuwemoncurrent. Nevertheless, accounts were
properly categorized in accordance with the nature of eaclumsicemd sequenced by their liquidity.
Please refer to Note 30 for maturity analysis of assets andtiesbili

Significant accounting policies are summarized as follows:

Foreign Currencies

Nonderivative foreign-currency transactions are recorded in TN@wan dollars at the rates of exchange in

effect when the transactions occur. Exchange differences afisimgsettlement of foreign-currency
assets and liabilities are recognized in profit or loss.
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At the balance sheet date, foreign-currency monetarysaaset liabilities are revalued using prevailing
exchange rates, and the exchange differences are recognized in profit or los

At the balance sheet date, foreign-currency nonmonetansdsseh as equity instruments) and liabilities
that are measured at fair value are revalued using prevaittitange rates, with the exchange differences
treated as follows:

a. Recognized in stockholders’ equity if the changes in fair value@gmieed in stockholders’ equity;
b. Recognized in profit and loss if the changes in fair value are recdgnipeofit or loss.

Foreign-currency nonmonetary assets and liabilities that areccatri®st continue to be stated at exchange
rates at trade dates.

If the functional currency of an equity-method investee israign currency, translation adjustments will
result from the translation of the investee’s financialest&nts into the reporting currency of the Bank.
These adjustments are accumulated and reported as a sepapirartrof stockholders’ equity.

Accounting Estimates

Under the above guidelines, law and principles, certain estimateassumptions have been used for the
fair values of financial assets and liabilities; thevallace for doubtful accounts; depreciation of property
and equipment; income tax; pension cost; loss on pending litigatiesst impairment; allowance for
losses on guarantees; bonuses to employees, directors and sugeetts Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

Basis of Financial Statement Preparation

The accompanying financial statements include the accounts ldetkeOffice, OBU, all branches and the
representative offices. All interoffice transactions and bakhave been eliminated.

Basis of Fair Value Determination

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabgitee the balance sheet date are determined as follows:
publicly traded stocks - at closing prices; open-end mutual fursdsnet asset values; bonds - at prices
quoted by the Taiwan GreTai Securities Market or Bloombergfinadcial assets and financial liabilities
without quoted prices in an active market - at values determinedvadingion techniques.

Securities Purchased or Sold Under Resell or Repunase Agreements

Securities purchased under resell agreements and secuidiesder repurchase agreements are generally
treated as collateralized financing transactions. Inte@sted on resell agreements and interest incurred
on repurchase agreement is recognized as interest incomeesinexpense over the life of each
agreement.

Financial Assets and Liabilities at Fair Value thraugh Profit or Loss

Financial instruments classified as financial assetsandial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL) include financial assets or financial liabilitibeld for trading and those designated as at FVTPL
on initial recognition. The Bank recognizes a financiaktass a financial liability on its balance sheet
when the Bank becomes a party to the contractual provisions fihdineial instrument. A financial asset
is derecognized when the Bank loses control of its contradtms$ rover the financial asset. A financial
liability is derecognized when the obligation specified in #levwant contract is discharged, canceled or
expired.
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Financial instruments at FVTPL are initially measured ataue. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liab#ited FVTPL are recognized immediately in profit
or loss. At each balance sheet date subsequent to initignidon, financial assets or financial liabilities

at FVTPL are remeasured at fair value, with changes indaiewecognized directly in profit or loss in the
year in which they arise. Cash dividends received subsdyierdiuding those received in the year of

investment) are recognized as income for the year. On daigongof a financial asset or a financial

liability, the difference between its carrying amount ahd sum of the consideration received and
receivable or consideration paid and payable is recognizeafih @rloss. All regular way purchases or

sales of financial assets are recognized and derecognizedrateadate basis, except for bond trading
(settlement date basis).

A derivative that does not meet the criteria for hedgeounting is classified as a financial asset or a
financial liability held for trading. If the fair value of thderivative is positive, the derivative is
recognized as a financial asset; otherwise, the derivativedgmzed as a financial liability.

Financial asset and financial liabilities that give tiseffsetting changes in fair values may be designated
as financial instruments at fair value through profit or lossliminate inconsistencies in measuring these
instruments. This FVTPL designation applies to some derivatstauiments and debt investments that do
not qualify for hedge accounting. If the hedging items are reigiated as financial instruments at fair
value through profit or loss, an accounting inconsistency wikaecause the profits or losses resulting
from the hedged items will not be recognized during the same @eriththt for profits and losses generated
on the hedging items. To avoid this kind of inconsistency, thekRBlesignated derivatives and debt
investments as financial instruments at fair value through prdfiser

Available-for-sale Financial Assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are initially meaduaefair value plus transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition. At each balance sheet datessequent to initial recognition,
available-for-sale financial assets are remeasurediravdlue, with changes in fair value recognized in
equity until the financial assets are disposed of, at whinob, tthe cumulative gain or loss previously
recognized in equity is included in profit or loss for the yedkll regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognized and derecognized on a trade date basis.

The recognition, derecognition and the fair value bases of awaflabsale financial assets are the same as
those of financial assets at FVTPL.

Cash dividends are recognized on the ex-dividend date, except fderdls distributed from the
pre-acquisition profit, which are treated as a reduction of imeg cost. Stock dividends are not
recognized as investment income but are recorded as an inanets® iumber of shares. The total
number of shares subsequent to the increase is used for ratafcolf cost per share. The difference
between the initial cost of a debt instrument and its maturity amoumibitized using the effective interest
method, with the amortized interest recognized in profit or loss.

An impairment loss is recognized when there is objective ewdémat the financial asset is impaired.
Any subsequent decrease in impairment loss an equity instrumessifieth as available-for-sale is
recognized directly in equity. If the fair value of a démstrument classified as available-for-sale
increases as a result of an event that occurred aftembesirment loss was recognized, the decrease in
impairment loss is reversed to profit.
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Held-to-maturity Financial Assets

Held-to-maturity financial assets are carried at amedt cost using the effective interest method.
However, the straight-line method is used if there are no signifilifetences between the results of using
the effective interest method and the straight-line methoabld-té-maturity financial assets are initially
measured at fair value plus transaction costs that amldiegtributable to the acquisition. Profit or loss
is recognized when the financial assets are derecognizg@irgd, or amortized. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are accounted for usidlg adte basis.

An impairment loss is recognized when there is objective re@that the investment is impaired. The
impairment loss is reversed if an increase in the investmestoverable amount is due to an event that
occurred after the impairment loss was recognized; howeker,atljusted carrying amount of the
investment may not exceed the carrying amount that would havedetermined had no impairment loss
been recognized for the investment in prior years.

Other Financial Assets

Investments in equity instruments with no quoted prices in areactarket and with fair values that cannot
be reliably measured, such as non-publicly traded stocks, are mubasutheir original cost. The
accounting treatment for dividends on financial assets carriedsatis the same as that for dividends on
available-for-sale financial assets. An impairment issecognized when there is objective evidence that
the asset is impaired. A reversal of this impairment loss idaligad.

Bond investments with fixed or determinable payments and wittuoted prices in an active market are
carried at amortized cost using the effective intereshodet The accounting treatment for these bond
investments is the same as that for held-to-maturignfital assets, except for the absence of restriction on
the timing of their disposal.

Nonperforming Loans

Pursuant to “Regulations Governing the Procedures for Bankiritutimsts to Evaluation Assets and Deal
with Nonperforming/Nonaccrual Loans” issued by the Ministry ofaRce, the balances of loans and other
credits extended by the Bank and the related accrued indeeedassified as nonperforming when the loan
is overdue and when this classification is approved by the boardremftads. Nonperforming loans
reclassified from loans are classified as discounts and;lo#merwise, these loans are classified as other
financial assets.

Allowances for Credit Losses and for Losses on Guantees

In determining the allowances for credit losses and foreogm guarantees, the Bank assesses the
collectibility of the balances of discounts and loans, rebd#ga nonperforming loans, and other financial
assets as well as guarantees and acceptances for tHe sEa or general risks as of the balance sheet
dates.

Under the regulations issued by Ministry of Finance (MOF), the Bank evaltradit losses on the basis of
the estimated collectibility.

The MOF regulations also require the grouping of loans inteethige classes: Normal, special mention,
substandard, with doubtful collectibility and uncollectible; the mimn allowances for credit losses and
for losses on guarantees for the non-normal loans should be 2%,508%0and 100% of outstanding

credits, respectively.

Later, the MOF issued a guideline stating that, within theses/from January 1, 2011, the normal loans
should have a minimum allowance of 0.5%, with the allowanceséfaur non-normal loans remaining
the same. The Bank believes it can meet this new allowago@ement within three years from January
1, 2011.
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Loan write-offs that are made in accordance with MOF guidelmel with the board of directors’ approval
are offset against the recorded allowance for credit losses.

As discussed in Note 3 to the financial statements, on Jadu@@11, the Bank adopted the third-time
revised Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFA8) 3 - “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement.” One of the main revisiondhas the impairment of receivables
originated by the Bank should be covered by SFAS No. 34. Accountwalgleeare assessed for
impairment at the end of each reporting period and consideredrétipainen there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurredthéénitial recognition of the accounts receivable,
the estimated future cash flows of the asset have bésieaf. Objective evidence of impairment could
include:

e Significant financial difficulty of the debtor;
e Accounts receivable becoming overdue; or
e |t becoming probable that the debtor will enter into bankruptcy or undeaytcfal reorganization.

Accounts receivable that are assessed as not impaired indliviggafurther assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment of & @i of accounts receivable could include the
Bank’s past experience of collecting payments and an ireciedhe number of delayed payments, as well
as observable changes in national or local economic conditions thaatowih defaults on receivables.

The amount of the impairment loss recognized is the differencebetthie asset carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows, after taking ictwat the related collaterals and guarantees,
discounted at the receivable’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the accounts receivable is reduced thtbeghse of an allowance account.
When accounts receivable are considered uncollectible, theyritien off against the allowance account.
Recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited toatlmevance account. Changes in the
carrying amount of the allowance account are recognized as bad debt inmoxd.

Impairment of Assets

If the recoverable amount of an asset (mainly property and eguipmtangible assets and investments
accounted for by the equity method) is estimated to be lasstthcarrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impailoes is charged to earnings unless the asset
is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairtossitis first treated as a reduction of the
unrealized revaluation increment and any remaining loss is chargeaitysar

If an impairment loss reverses, the carrying amount of thet Bsecreased accordingly, but the increased
carrying amount may not exceed the carrying amount that would hawaléeemined had no impairment
loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. A réveirsan impairment loss is recognized in
earnings, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amowhichcase the reversal of the impairment loss
is first recognized as gain to the extent that an impairhesston the same revalued asset was previously
charged to earnings. Any excess amount is treated as an incrdesanngalized revaluation increment.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated ¢th @& the relevant cash-generating units
(CGUs) that are expected to benefit from the synergies adipagisition. A CGU to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment annually or whenever ithemn indication that the CGU may be
impaired. If the recoverable amount of the CGU becomes lasstthcarrying amount, the impairment is
allocated to first reduce the carrying amount of the goodwdcated to the CGU and then to the other
assets of the CGU pro rata on the basis of the carryiogranof each asset in the CGU. A reversal of an
impairment loss on goodwill is disallowed.
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For long-term equity investments on which the Bank has significdloence but over which it has no
control, the carrying amount (including goodwill) of each investhis compared with its own recoverable
amount for the purpose of impairment testing.

Investments Accounted for by the Equity Method

Investments in which the Bank holds 20 percent or more of thestews’ voting shares or exercises
significant influence over the investees’ operating and fimdmpolicy decisions are accounted for by the
equity method.

The acquisition cost is allocated to the assets acquired aitities assumed on the basis of their fair
values at the date of acquisition, and the acquisition castdess of the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recognized as goodwill. Goodwill is nairtemad. The fair value of the net
identifiable assets acquired in excess of the acquisitehis used to reduce the fair value of each of the
noncurrent assets acquired (except for financial assets otlneintlestments accounted for by the equity
method, noncurrent assets held for sale, deferred income tax pssptéd pension or other postretirement
benefit) in proportion to the respective fair values of the nowantiassets, with any excess recognized as
an extraordinary gain.

Profits from downstream transactions with an equity-methodsiaeeare eliminated in proportion to the
Bank’s percentage of ownership in the investee; however, if éiné Bas control over the investee, all the
profits are eliminated. Profits from upstream transactionis avit equity-method investee are eliminated
in proportion to the Bank’s percentage of ownership in the investee.

When the Bank subscribes for its investee’s newly issued stiaeepercentage different from its current
percentage of ownership in the investee, the Bank records dimgechin its equity in the investee’s net
assets as an adjustment to investments, with a correspomdingtacredited or charged to capital surplus.
When the adjustment should be debited to capital surplughéutapital surplus arising from long-term
investments is insufficient, the shortage is debited to retaimathgs.

When the Bank’s share in losses of an investee over whicBahlk has significant influence equals its
investment in that investee plus any advances made to thdeimyvése Bank discontinues applying the
equity method. The Bank continues to recognize its share in losses of #teénf¢a) the Bank commits

to provide further financial support to the investee or (b) dlseds of the investee are considered to be
temporary and sufficient evidence shows imminent return to profitability.

When the Bank’s share in losses of an investee over wiicBdnk has control exceeds its investment in
the investee, unless the other stockholders of the inveateeassumed legal or constructive obligations

and have demonstrated the ability to make payments on behh# bfvestee, the Bank has to bear all of

the losses in excess of the capital contributed by stockhaltithie investee. If the investee subsequently
reports profits, these profits are first attributed to tlemlBto the extent of the excess losses previously
borne by the Bank.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulapedciddon. Major additions and
improvements to property and equipment are capitalized, whieairs and maintenance are expensed
currently.

Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis over etiuinaseful lives as follows: buildings and
improvements, 50 to 55 years; machinery and equipment, 3 tor§; yemsportation equipment, 3 to 5
years; and leasehold improvements, 5 years. Property and equigithentuse beyond their original
estimated useful lives are further depreciated over theiryrestimated useful lives.

Upon sale or disposal of property and equipment, their cost and reletadulated depreciation are
removed from their respective accounts. Any resulting gain (losgdied (charged) to current income.
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Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of another company was preyiansortized over the estimated life of
five years. Effective January 1, 2006, based on the newdpgedl Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 37 - “Intangible Assets,” goodwill is no longer dmeattand instead is tested for
impairment annually.

Collaterals Assumed

Collaterals assumed (included in other assets) are recaradedt, which includes the assumed prices and
any necessary repairs to make the collaterals saleablevahated at the lower of cost or net realizable
value as of the balance sheet date.

Other Assets

Deferred charges, which include the costs of computer systétware and telephone installation, are
amortized on the straight-line basis over five years.

The loss on sale of nonperforming loans should be recognized in thefydmposal to comply with
accounting principles generally accepted in the Republic mfaCh In addition, the difference between the
carrying amount and selling price of the nonperforming loans didpafsis amortized over 60 months in
accordance with Rule No. 15 of the Financial Institution Consolidation Lave (N9t

Pension Cost

Pension cost under a defined benefit plan is determined by attuan@tions. Contributions made under
a defined contribution plan are recognized as pension cost duringedinan which employees render
services.

Curtailment or settlement gains or losses on the defined bgiafitare recognized as part of the net
pension cost for the year.

Compound Instruments

The components of compound instruments are treated separatelpilitteiaand equity instrument in

accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangenfgnthe date of issue, the fair value of the
liability component is estimated using the prevailing markeégrest rate for a similar noncompound
instrument (including any embedded non-equity derivatives). Thiwdie is recorded as a liability on
an amortized cost basis until the liability is extinguiskoed instrument conversion or maturity. The
carrying value of the equity component is determined by dedud¢tengrhount of the liability component
from the fair value of the compound instrument as a whole. @déig/ing value is recognized and
included in equity and is not subsequently remeasured.

Based on the newly released Statement of Financial Accousttamglards No. 36 - “Financial Instruments:
Disclosure and Presentation,” transaction costs of bondadsm or after January 1, 2006 are allocated in
proportion to the liability and equity components of the bonds.

Reserve for Default Losses
Under the regulations of the Securities and Futures Burd#®)) (8he Bank will provide a default reserve
equal to 0.0028% of the total consigned trades monthly until the atatiech reserve reaches $200,000

thousand. This reserve is used only to offset actual losses resudtingudstomers’ default or other losses
as approved by the SFB.
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Reserve for Securities Trading Losses

Under the regulations issued by the SFB, the Bank recognizagiagttoss reserve monthly at 10% of the
net gain on sale of securities until this reserve reaches $200@@ahd. It should be used only to offset
actual losses on the sale of securities.

Under the Financial Supervisory Commission letter No. 09900738571 eeleas January 11, 2011,
securities firms became no longer required to recognizedderve for default losses and reserve for
securities trading losses from January 1, 2011.

Income Tax

The Bank applies the intra-year and inter-year allocation mettwoits income tax, whereby deferred
income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for theftegt® of temporary differences, unused loss
carryforwards and unused tax credits. Valuation allowanceprawded to the extent, if any, that it is
more likely than not that deferred income tax assets will not be realized.

Tax credits for research and development expenditures are reabgsizg the flow-through method.

Adjustments of prior years’ tax liabilities are added to or deducted frerourrent year’s tax provision.

According to the Income Tax Law, an additional tax at 10%nafppropriated earnings is provided for as
income tax in the year the stockholders approve the retention of earnings.

Recognition of Interest Revenue and Service Fees
Interest revenue on loans is recorded by the accrual method. téMestnrevenue is recognized in the
accompanying financial statements on loans and other crethtsded by the Bank that are classified as

nonperforming loans. The interest revenue on these loans/creditsdmized upon collection.

Under a Ministry of Finance regulation, the interest revenueredlits covered by agreements that extend
their repayment periods is recorded as deferred revenue and redaggiz&enue upon collection.

Service fees are recorded as revenue upon receipt and sabstamipletion of activities involved in the
earnings process.

Contingencies
A loss is recognized if it is probable that an asset has inggaired or a liability has been incurred and the
amount of loss can be reasonably estimated. If the impairmenbiddigbility incurrence is possible and

the related amount cannot be reasonably estimated, a footnotesualiscbf the circumstances that might
give rise to the possible loss or liability should be made.

. EFFECTS OF CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

Financial Instruments

On January 1, 2011, the Bank adopted the newly revised Statemeiman€i&l Accounting Standards
(SFAS) No. 34 - “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measuteindmong the main revisions is

the inclusion of loans and receivables originated by the Bank amhengems now covered by SFAS
No. 34.
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Operating Segments

On January 1, 2011, the Bank adopted the newly issued SFAS No. 4deratidg Segments.” The
statement requires that segment information be disclosed obagie of the information about the
components of the Bank that management uses to make operatirigndeciSFAS No. 41 requires the
identification of operating segments on the basis of inteegdrts that are regularly reviewed by the
Bank's chief operating decision maker in order to allocateuress to the segments and assess their
performance. This statement supersedes SFAS No. 20 - “Sefrepotting.” For this accounting
change, the Bank restated the segment information as of andefgear ended December 31, 2010 to
conform to the disclosures as of and for the year ended December 31, 2011.

. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

December 31

2011 2010
Cash on hand $ 3,730,621 $ 3,256,466
Checks for clearing 3,635,427 1,639,146
Due from banks 1,024,544 4,048,666

$ 8,390,592 $ 8,944,278

. DUE FROM THE CENTRAL BANK AND OTHER BANKS

December 31

2011 2010
Due from the Central Bank
Deposit reserve - checking account $ 7,343,378 $ 3,652,952
Required deposit reserve 8,408,101 7,642,173
Deposit reserve - foreign-currency deposits 30,290 29,152
Deposit account in Central Bank 86,000,000 50,000,000

$ 101,781,769 $ 61,324,277
Under a directive issued by the Central Bank of the ROC, N@wah dollar (NTD)-denominated deposit
reserves are determined monthly at prescribed rates oagaviealances of customers’ NTD-denominated
deposits, which are subject to withdrawal restrictions.
In addition, the foreign-currency deposit reserves are detedmaherates prescribed for balances of
foreign-currency deposits. These reserves may be withdrawn moityeamdrare noninterest earning.

. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PRO FIT OR LOSS

December 31

2011 2010
Financial assets held for trading
Commercial paper $ 3,575,646 $ 2,618,625
Negotiable certificates of deposit 1,512,400 -
Domestic quoted stocks 98,257 33,093
(Continued)
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December 31

2011 2010
Government bonds $ 51,983 $ 52,741
Corporate bonds 50,735 51,004
Forward exchange contracts 110,757 164,207
Currency swap contracts 8,033 5,152
Option contracts 997 7,491

5,408,808 2,932,313
Financial assets designated as at fair value through profit or loss

Corporate bonds 2,758,735 85,510
$ 8,167,543 $ 3,017,823

Financial liabilities held for trading

Forward exchange contracts $ 32,292 $ 43,947
Currency swap contracts 563 168
Option contracts 997 7,469
$ 33852 §  51.584

(Concluded)

The Bank engaged in derivative transactions in 2011 and 2010 maiatgdmmodate customers’ needs
and manage its exposure positions. The financial risk mareaeshject of the Bank was to minimize
risks due to changes in fair value or cash flows.

The contract amounts (notional amounts) of derivative transadtoreaccommodating customers’ needs
and managing its exposure positions as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 were as follows:

December 31

2011 2010
Forward exchange contracts $ 9,271,383 $ 7,125,486
Currency swap contracts 15,762,905 8,450,517
Option contracts
Buy 503,266 440,489
Sell 503,266 440,489

The gains or losses on financial assets and liabilitiésiratalue through profit or loss in 2011 and 2010
were as follows:

2011 2010

Net gain on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss $ 123,034 $ 201,421
Net gain (loss) on financial liabilities at fair value through profi

loss (102,897 86,082
Gain, net $ 20,137 $ 287,503
Realized gain $ 93,002 $ 197,319
Unrealized gain (loss) (72,869 90,184
Gain, net $ 20,137 $ 287,503
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The financial instruments at fair value through profit or lassounting to $3,677,469 thousand and
$2,722,740 thousand as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 had been sold under repurchase agreements.

. RECEIVABLES, NET

December 31

2011 2010

Accounts receivable $ 13,480,088 $ 15,139,486
Asset-backed commercial paper 1,561,672 1,608,794
Interest receivable 605,686 612,842
Interbank clearing fund receivable 300,685 304,458
Income tax refund receivable 145,259 268,013
Receivable on disposal of property and equipment 138,783 309,605
Acceptances receivable 106,760 131,767
Collection receivable 64,244 62,880
Others 15,062 84,762

16,418,239 18,522,607
Less: Allowance for credit losses 1,331,578 1,714,169

$ 15,086,661 $ 16,808,438

. DISCOUNTS AND LOANS, NET

December 31

2011 2010

Discounts and overdraft $ 87,178 $ 118,064

Accounts receivable - financing 99,528 133,336
Loans

Short-term - unsecured 15,163,198 14,734,833

- secured 35,873,027 28,246,782

Medium-term - unsecured 8,511,019 9,812,574

- secured 27,165,831 24,847,313

Long-term - unsecured 5,964,654 7,824,029

- secured 99,023,101 103,958,979

Import and export negotiations 117,814 84,434

Overdue loans 601,434 1,332,448

192,606,784 191,092,792

Less: Allowance for credit losses 1,926,791 1,435,693

$ 190,679,993 $ 189,657,099

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the balances of nonaccrual loans were $&bau$3shd and
$1,332,448 thousand, respectively. The unrecognized interest revenuesip@iforming loans were
$13,334 thousand in 2011 and $54,408 thousand in 2010.

In 2011 and 2010, the Bank wrote off certain credits after completing the reagetghtocedures.
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As discussed in Note 3 to the financial statements, the Ba@ssel the impairment loss of loans and
receivables on the basis of a newly revised Statemdrinahcial Accounting Standard (SFAS) No. 34 -
“Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.” As a resutgparment loss was recognized
on due from the Central Bank and other banks. Impairment of other dodnaccounts receivable are
summarized as follows:

Loans
Gross Loans Allowance for
ltems Possible Losses
December 31, 2011 December 31, 2011
Assessed individual
With objective evidence of impairment $ 3030153 $ 1229267
impairment Agsessgd collective 639,371 179,015
impairment
Wl_th no objective evidence ofAs_sess_ed collective 189,273,888 518,509
impairment impairment

Note 1: The amount of gross loans does not include the allowangeo$sible losses or discounts
(premiums).

Note 2: The amount of gross loans include the interests réteiob$229,868 thousand and acceptances
receivable amounting to $106,760 thousand.

Receivables
. Allowance for
ltems Gross Receivables Possible Losses
December 31, 2011 December 31, 2011
Assessed individual
With objective evidence of impairment $ 2,132,606 $ 1,032,924
impairment Agsessgd collective 2,745,424 246,000
impairment
Wl_th no objective evidence ofAs_sess_ed collective 10,805,448 52.654
impairment impairment

Note 1: The amount of gross receivables does not include twaalte for possible losses or discounts
(premiums).

Note 2: The amount of gross receivables does not include the amfunterests receivable of $229,868
thousand, acceptances receivable amounting to $106,760 thousand, tefuncaime tax of
$145,259 thousand, interest receivable of $251,693 thousand on finandmbasskabilities and
others amounting to $1,181 thousand.

Note 3: The financial reports for the six months ended June 30, 2011 and foartleaged December 31,
2011 do not need to contain comparative information.
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10.

The changes in the allowance for credit losses on discounts andrémangables are summarized as
follows:

2011 2010
Balance, beginning of year $ 3,149,862 $ 3,400,100
Provision 121,500 409,502
Write-off (1,013,709) (1,756,459)
Recovery of written-off credits 1,009,770 922,326
Merger with Union Bill Finance Corporation - 176,289
Reclassifications (9,857) -
Effects of changes in foreign exchange rates 803 (1,896
Balance, end of year $ 3,258,369 $ 3,149,862

. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

December 31

2011 2010
Government bonds $ 2,707,520 $ 1,804,883
Corporate bonds 2,393,246 3,137,901
Mutual funds 904,568 366,672
Domestic quoted stocks 769,179 506,408
Overseas quoted stocks 742,383 414,185

7,516,896 $ 6,230,049

The available-for-sale financial assets amounting to $4,254,626 thousar## £76,647 thousand as of
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively, had been sold under repurchase agreement

Entie Securities Finance Company (“Entie Finance”), an ipeesf the Bank, merged with and was
absorbed by the Capital Group on March 1, 2010. Based on the OperatisgoRtile Taiwan Stock
Exchange Corporation, the common shares held by the Bank, which had begmssegd by the Capital
Group for its merger with the Bank, should be placed in centdalimstody with the Taiwan Securities
Central Depository Co., Ltd. Half of these shares may be withdedter six months from their listing
date. The remaining shares may all be withdrawn after a yeatientisting date.

HELD-TO-MATURITY FINANCIAL ASSETS
December 31
2011 2010
Government bonds $ 664,350 $ 1,435,157
Corporate bonds 399,871 399,754
Asset-based securities 248,794 1,437,723

$ 1,313,015 $ 3,272,634

The held-to-maturity investments amounting to $214,574 thousand and $0312®ousand as of
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively, had been sold under repurchase agreement
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11.

12.

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR BY THE EQUITY METHOD

December 31
2011 2010
Holding Holding
Amount Ratio (%) Amount Ratio (%)

Union Finance and Leasing International

Corporation $ 806,789 100.00 $ 738,898 100.00
Union Security Investment Trust Corporation 121,178 35.00 116,145 35.00
Union Finance International (H.K.) Limited 80,941 99.99 93,221 99.99
Union Real-Estate Management Corporation 66,721 40.00 54,045 40.00
Union Insurance Broker Company 24,793  100.00 25,424  100.00
Union Information Technology Corporation 14,372 99.99 22,843 99.99

$ 1,114,794 $ 1,050,576

Investment income (loss) recognized under the equity method was as follows

Years Ended December 31

2011 2010
Union Finance and Leasing International Corporation $ 62,941 $ 10,145
Union Security Investment Trust Corporation 5,033 1,554
Union Finance International (H.K.) Limited 2,566 3,305
Union Real-Estate Management Corporation 12,676 271
Union Insurance Broker Company 15,969 18,384
Union Information Technology Corporation (8,471) (1,750)
Union Bills Finance Corporation - (26,757

90,714 $ 5,152

On the available-for-sale financial assets held by the Banbsidiaries, the unrealized loss of $22,523
thousand in 2011 and the unrealized gain of $10,276 thousand in 2010naladed in stockholders’
equity.

In June 2010, Union Security Investment Trust Corporation issued 17,300 rttiosisares and then
reduced its capital to offset its deficit. The Bank propodiely subscribed for 6,055 thousand shares
amounting to $60,550 thousand.

Union Bills Finance Corporation merged with the Bank on August 16, 2010,tké Bank as survivor
entity. For further information, please refer to Note 34.

FINANCIAL ASSETS CARRIED AT COST
December 31
2011 2010
Unquoted stocks
Financial Information Service Company $ 118,782 $ 118,782
Taiwan Asset Management Corporation 100,000 100,000
Taiwan Future Exchange Corporation 71,250 71,250
Taiwan Financial Asset Service Corporation 50,000 50,000
Other 110,419 112,549

$ 450,451 $ 452,581
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The above equity investments, which had no quoted prices intiae atarket and had fair values that
could not be reliably measured, were carried at cost.

. NO-ACTIVE MARKET DEBT INSTRUMENTS

December 31

2011 2010
Asset-based securities $ 44,723,018 $ 50,877,566
Securitized beneficial certificates of securitization - 1,257

$ 44,723,018 $ 50,878,823

The no-active market debt instruments amounting to $37,547,378 thousa®@abuil 660 thousand as of
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively, had been sold under repurchase agreement

. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

December 31

2011 2010
Cost $ 10,556,562 $ 10,518,549
Less: Accumulated depreciation
Buildings 848,000 739,956
Machinery and equipment 1,247,404 1,251,702
Transportation equipment 229,498 220,377
Leasehold improvements 287,770 255,688
2,612,672 2,467,723
Prepayments for equipment 12,811 38,657
Net property and equipment $ 7,956,701 $ 8,089,483
. OTHER ASSETS
December 31
2011 2010
Deferred tax assets, net (Note 24) $ 3,145,535 $ 3,323,224
Collaterals assumed, net 297,951 546,392
Deferred charges 138,523 177,804
Prepayments 132,119 113,051
Deferred loss from disposal of nonperforming loans - 965,255
Other 809 2,222

$ 3,714,937 $ 5,127,948
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16.

17.

In 2006, the Bank sold to Morgan Stanley Union Bank Asset Manage@ergoration (MSUB)
nonperforming loans with a carrying value of $9,557,282 thousand at theaatoprice of $1,610,025
thousand and recognized a loss of $7,947,257 thousand. The Bank deferretdizéd this loss over
60 months in accordance with the Financial Institution Consolidattan L The remaining unamortized
balance was recorded as other assets. Had the lossesenotldferred, the pretax income would have
increased by $965,261 thousand in 2011 and $1,587,321 thousand in 2010, and the dfalhecather

assets and unappropriated earnings as of December 31, 2010 would have decreased by $965255 thousa

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the remaining payments of $138,783 thous&88%601 thousand,
respectively, on the above transaction had not been received from MSUB.

After evaluating the net fair value of the collateralsuassd, the Bank recognized impairment losses of
$37,140 thousand in 2011 and $173,146 thousand in 2010.

GOODWILL

The Bank acquired Chung Shing Bank (“Chung Shing”) on March 19, 2005 and m=zbguodwill
amounting to $3,309,000 thousand. The goodwill amortization period was yBars, and the
amortization expense in 2005 was $551,500 thousand. However, the amortfzgtadwill became no
longer required from January 1, 2006.

The Bank merged with Union Bills Finance Corporation on August 16, 2010eaondnized goodwill
amounting to $130,498 thousand. For further information, please refer to Note 34.

For the impairment test on Chung Shing, the Bank treated individual basimits as cash-generating units
(CGUs). Goodwill resulting from the merger was allocatedhe relevant CGUs. The recoverable
amount was determined by the value in use of each CGU and watatal at the present values of the
forecast cash flows for the next five years based on thegguincern assumption. Future cash flows
were estimated on the basis of Chung Shing's present operatidnill be adjusted depending on the
business outlook and economic trends.

As a result of the impairment test, the Bank recognized a goadhpilirment loss of $254,776 thousand in
2011 and $125,651 thousand in 2010. As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the balacmesnwated
impairment were $768,289 thousand and $513,513 thousand, respectively.

CALL LOANS AND DUE TO OTHER BANKS
December 31
2011 2010
Due to Chunghwa Post Co., Ltd. $ 6,972,990 $ 10,225,910
Due to the Central Bank and other banks 23,492 50,974
Overdraft 10,774 10,462

7,007,256 $ 10,287,346
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18. PAYABLES

December 31

2011 2010
Notes and checks in clearing $ 3,635,427 $ 1,639,146
Interest payable 813,803 730,318
Accrued expenses 477,025 381,256
Tax payable 163,344 249,808
Collection payable 154,184 131,120
108,719 134,883

Bank acceptances payable

Accounts payable on wire transfers received 67,440 63,400
Trust fund payable 8,584 51,497
Others 418,776 457,468

$ 5,847,302 $ 3,838,896

19. DEPOSITS AND REMITTANCES

December 31
2011 2010

$ 213,217,552 $ 194,756,958
61,012,350 52,125,463
43,028,473 38,225,437

Savings deposits
Time deposits
Demand deposits

Checking deposits 4,356,838 3,579,848
Negotiable certificates of deposit 1,033,900 736,600
Inward and outward remittances 107,797 181,548

$ 322,756,910 $ 289,605,854

20. BANK DEBENTURES

December 31

2011 2010 Term
First subordinated bank $ - $ 2,000,000 Fixed interest rate of 2.60%; maturi
debentures issued in 2005 June 2011
First subordinated bank 1,190,000 1,190,000 Fixed interest rate of 2.60%; maturi
debentures issued in 2006 - May 2012
class A
First subordinated bank 800,000 800,000 One year time savings deposit rate of

First Bank plus 0.3%; maturity:

debentures issued in 2006 -
November 2013

class B

First subordinated bank 900,000 900,000 Fixed interest rate of 2.95%; maturi
debentures issued in 2009 June 2016

First subordinated bank 2,000,000 - Fixed interest rate of 2.98 maturity:
debentures issued in 2011 June 2018

$ 4,890,000 $ 4,890,000
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21. PENSION PLAN

The pension plan under the Labor Pension Act (LPA) is a definstdlmation plan. Based on the LPA,
the rate of the Bank’s monthly contributions to employees’ indivigaakion accounts is at 6% of monthly
salaries and wages. Related pension costs were $88,298 thousand in 2011 andHeRE4dad in 2010.

Under the Labor Standards Law, the Bank has a defined benefitopepisin covering all regular
employees. The Bank makes monthly contributions at 2% of emland wages to the Labor Pension
Fund (managed by the employees’ pension fund administrative ca®mdeposited in the Bank of
Taiwan and to an employee pension account (in the Taipei branch Bamkg respectively. The Bank
recognized defined benefit pension costs of $43,628 thousand in 2011 and $38,849 thousand in 2010.

Information on the defined benefit plan is as follows:

a. Components of net periodic pension cost

Year Ended December 31

2011 2010

Service cost $ 19,011 $ 21,153
Interest cost 22,441 17,354
Projected return on plan assets (10,697) (9,832)
Amortization

Prior service cost (519) (519)

Loss of pension cost 16,865 12,611
Curtailment or settlement gain (3,473 (1,918
Net periodic pension cost $ 43,628 $ 38,849

b. Reconciliation of funded status of the plan and accrued pension cost

December 31

2011 2010

Benefit obligation

Vested benefit obligation $ (126,789) $  (99,989)

Non-vested benefit obligation (623,080 (553,789

Accumulated benefit obligation (749,869) (653,778)

Additional benefits based on future salaries (390,11} (351,379

Projected benefit obligation (1,139,980) (1,005,157)
Fair value of plan assets 567,150 532,241
Funded status (572,830) (472,916)
Unrealized net prior service cost (4,344) (4,894)
Unrecognized net loss 571,970 471,551
Additional liability (177,51% (115,278
Accrued pension cost (included in other liabilities) $ (182,71% $ (121,53Y
Vested benefits $ (140,119 $ (111,559
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Actuarial assumptions as of December 31, 2011 and 2010

December 31

2011 2010
Discount rate used in determining present values 2.00% 2.25%
Future salary increase rate 3.00% 3.00%
Expected rate of return on plan assets 2.00% 2.00%

Year Ended December 31

2011 2010
Contributions to the fund $ 44,038 $ 57,218
Payments from the fund $ (16,410 $ (19,536

22. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

a.

In the stockholders’ meeting on June 15, 2007, the stockholderseresmlraise publicly or privately
the Bank’s cash capital by $8,000,000 thousand through a one-time or atsailssuance depending
on the market situation. On September 26, 2007, the Bank privaselgdis400,000 thousand
preferred shares at NT$10.00 par value and 6% dividend rate.

Under the Bank’s Articles of Incorporation, after the Bank apprgwithe legal and special reserves
from its net income (less any deficit), the Bank should useqgfahe remainder as dividends to the
preferred stockholders. In their meeting on June 13, 2008, the Bardkhdaltiers passed a resolution
to amend the Articles of Incorporation. Based on this amendrhensguance of preferred dividends
will no longer be whenever the Bank makes profits and instéthdevmade only under common
stockholders’ resolutions approving this issuance. The prefemwekhsiders can participate in the
distribution of the remaining earnings at the ratio of one pexfeshare for one common share after
earnings distribution to the common stockholders but cannot pat@idipahe distribution of capital
surplus transferred to common stock. A preferred share cannbertad into one common share a
year after the issuance date. The Bank, upon getting apravethe Banking Bureau, can call back
some or all of the outstanding preferred shares after sis yiamn the issuance date at the price of the
issuance amount plus unpaid accumulated dividends.

To improve the Bank’s financial structure, the board of darscof the Bank approved on May 19,
2010 a capital reduction to offset its deficit of $5,651,624 thousardkbgeasing common stock by
467,671 thousand shares and preferred stock by 97,491 thousand shares,|fof 586862 thousand
shares equal to a capital reduction of 24.3728%.

The Bank merged with Union Bills Finance Corporation (UBF) on Aufjes2010 by issuing 194,838
thousand common shares to the stockholders of UBF (see Note 34)$8t8Nper share and
consequently debited $233,805 thousand to retained earnings. Afteertper nthe issued capital of
the Bank amounted to $19,484,996 thousand, including $3,025,088 thousand in preferred shares.

Capital surplus

Under the Company Law, capital surplus may be used to offséica. deHowever, the capital surplus
from shares issued in excess of par (additional paid-in cdpital issuance of common shares,
conversion of bonds and treasury stock transactions) and donaggnise capitalized within a certain
percentage of the Bank’s paid-in capital. Under the rdv@@ampany Law issued on January 4, 2012,
the foregoing capital surplus may be distributed in cash. Howeaeital surplus from long-term
investments may not be used for any purpose.
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C.

Retained earnings

The Bank’s Articles of Incorporation provide that annual net incas® &ny prior years’ deficit should
be appropriated in the following order:

1) 30% as legal reserve;
2) Special reserve, as deemed proper;
3) Dividends;
4) The remainder:
a) Employees’ bonus of at least 10%;
b) Retained earnings, as deemed proper;

c) The remainder, together with prior year's unappropriated regni 95% as bonus to
stockholders and 5% as remuneration to directors and supervisors.

These appropriations should be resolved by the stockholders in theifigilyear and given effect to in
the financial statements of that year.

The board of directors (BOD) decides the appropriation andkdistrn of cash and stock dividends,
taking into account the Bank’s overall financial and econaaidition, future profitability and capital
expenditure requirements. In view of the Bank’s need fotalapi expand its operations and meeting
of capital adequacy ratios, primarily cash dividends will belated in the next three years, with the
related proposal to be submitted in the stockholders’ meeting for approval.

The estimated bonus to employees and remuneration to directorapamdisors, which were at least
10% of net income (net of legal reserve, special reservedadends) and 5%, respectively, of
unappropriated earnings (net income abovementioned and net of the bomumsployees plus
accumulated unappropriated earnings from prior years) werenigeddgor 2011. The amounts were
estimated on the basis of past experiences. Material diffesebetween these estimates and the
amounts proposed by the Board of Directors in the following yeaadjusted for in the year of the
proposal. If the actual amounts subsequently resolved by the stbeichdiffer from the proposed
amounts, the differences are recorded in the year of stockHalkelsphition as a change in accounting
estimate.

Based on a directive issued by the Securities and FuturealB(8&B), an amount equal to the net
debit balance of certain stockholders’ equity accounts (includingalined gain or loss on financial
instruments, net loss not recognized as pension cost, cumuianstation adjustments, except the
treasury stock) should be transferred from unappropriateingarto a special reserve. Any special
reserve appropriated may be reversed to the extent of the decrdasaendebit balance.

Under an SFB directive, if a financial institution’s nonperiing loans are sold to an asset
management corporation and the loss on this sale is amantieedive years, a special reserve should
be appropriated from retained earnings at an amount equal tofférerdie of the loss on sale of
nonperforming loans and the amortized amount, as required by the Hinastiiation Consolidation
Law, and the special reserve appropriated from retained earnings it solgjarnings appropriation.
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The appropriations from earnings for 2010 were approved in the stockholdetsigmen June 9, 2011.
The appropriations were as follows:

2010
Legal reserve $ 352,978
Special reserve 823,616

The appropriations from the 2011 earnings were proposed by the dfodirectors on March 7, 2012.
The appropriations, including the dividends per share, were as follows:

Appropriation Dividends Per
of Earnings Share (NT$)

Legal reserve $ 547,984

Stock dividends on common shares 658,396 $0.4
Cash dividends on preferred shares 757,611 0.6
Stock dividends on preferred shares 121,004 0.4

The 2011 appropriations of earnings, bonus to employees and remuneratienttwsiand supervisors
will be presented to the stockholders in their meeting on June 22, 2012.

The information on the proposed and resolved earnings appropriatiavaiiable on the Market
Observation Post System web site of the Taiwan Stock Exchange.

Legal reserve should be appropriated until it has reachdsiathiés paid-in capital. This reserve may
be used to offset a deficit. Under the revised Company Law issueduaryld, 2012, when the legal

reserve has exceeded 25% of the Bank’s paid-in capital, tlesexcay be transferred to capital or
distributed in cash.

In addition, the Banking Law provides that, before the balandeeofetserve reaches the aggregate par
value of the outstanding capital stock, annual cash dividends shoudcaemtd 15% of aggregate par
value of the outstanding capital stock of the Bank.

Based on the Financial Supervisory Commission’s Letter No. 038801 released in January 2011,
securities firms are required to transfer their accuradlaeserve for default losses and reserve for
securities trading losses up to December 31, 2010 to special reserves

In 2011, the Bank transferred its reserve for default loss&4&5689 thousand, reserve for securities
trading losses of $10,528 thousand, and deferred income tax assetsirgntui$8,260 thousand,
which totaled $50,857 thousand in 2010, to special reserve.

The above special reserve may be used only for capitalizihgfriaif the reserve has reached at least
50% of the paid-in capital or for offsetting a deficit.

Except for non-ROC resident stockholders, all stockholdersvingeihe dividends are allowed a tax
credit equal to their proportionate share of the income tax paid by the Bank.
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23. PERSONNEL, DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENS ES

2011 2010

Personnel expenses
Salaries and wages $ 1,568,821 $ 1,476,573
Bonus and rewards 453,740 384,154
Labor insurance and national health insurance 175,387 157,870
Pension 131,926 121,474
Other 17,012 8,443
$ 2,346,886 $ 2,148,514
Depreciation $ 219,776 $ 266,864
Amortization $ 82,178 $ 107,211

24. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

A reconciliation of income tax expense based on income befopen@tax at the statutory rates of 17%
and income tax expense was as follows:

Years Ended December 31

2011 2010
Income tax expense at the statutory rate $ 377,635 $ 311,527
Tax effect of adjusting items:
Permanent differences
Tax-exempt income (340,028) (449,872)
Others (8,774) (3,489)
Temporary differences 65,296 72,657
Loss carryforwards used (94,129) -
Loss carryforwards - 69,177
Additional income tax under the Alternative Minimum Tax Act 191,030 198,022
Current income tax expense 191,030 198,022
Deferred income tax expense
Temporary differences (44,520) (50,883)
Investment tax credits 6,424 5,792
Loss carryforwards produced 142,124 332,818
Effect of tax law changes on deferred income tax - 650,799
Adjustment in valuation allowance due to changes in tax laws - (124,752)
Other adjustment in valuation allowance 119,375 (593,889)
Tax separately levied on interest from short-term bills - 3
Adjustments for prior years’ tax (19,663 4,177
$ 394,765 $ 422,087
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Deferred income tax assets (liabilities) were as follows:

December 31

2011 2010
Loss carryforwards $ 3,303,701 $ 3,445,826
Investment tax credit 3,082 9,506
Reserve for default 452 8,683
Unrealized loss on collaterals assumed 15,917 9,603
Impairment loss on financial assets 164,105 164,105
Allowance for credit losses 201,575 180,418
Unrealized valuation gain on derivative instruments (13,285) (19,592)
Investment loss under the equity method 729 1,165
Amortization of goodwill (344,266) (383,142)
Unrealized exchange gains or losses (6,771) 21,168
Accrued pension cost (1,261) (1,473)
Cumulative translation adjustments 53,974 -

3,377,952 3,436,267
Less: Allowance for valuation of deferred income tax assets 232,417 113,043
Net deferred income tax assets (included in other assets) $ 3,145,535 $ 3,323,224

Under the Financial Institution Merger Act, the loss carryfolg from deferred income tax assets were
recalculated on the basis of the proportion of shares in thisgrentity held by the Bank’s stockholders
after the merger, and the recalculated loss carryforwami$e deducted from taxable income of the next

five years.

As of December 31, 2011, investment tax credits comprised the following:

Total
Creditable
Laws and Statutes Tax Credit Source Amount
$ 1,882

1,200

Statute for Upgrading IndustriesPersonnel training
expenditures

$ 3,082

Loss carryforwards as of December 31, 2011 comprised the following:

Unused Amount

$ 432,449
1,514,764
2,673,860
7,360,995
3,598,322
3,654,973

198,175

$ 19,433,538

Remaining
Creditable Expiry
Amount Year
$ 1,882 2012
1,200 2013
$ 3,082
Expiry Year
2013
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020

The Bank’s income tax returns through 2007 had been examined and cleared bytitiedidtes.
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25.

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the balances of the imputation @léxiitshle to the stockholders
were $386,199 thousand and $412,712 thousand, respectively.

The creditable ratios for the distribution of earnings ofl28dd 2010 were 20.48% (estimate) and 20.48%
(actual), respectively.

For the distribution of earnings generated after January 1, 1998atibefar the imputation credits
allocable to stockholders of the Bank is based on the baldnttee dCA as of the date of dividend
distribution. Thus, the expected creditable ratio for the 2@idirgs may be adjusted, depending on the
ICA balance on the date of dividend distribution.

EARNINGS PER SHARE
The Bank issued convertible preferred stock, which could Imsfeaed to common stock of the Bank;
thus, the capital structure of the Bank is complicated, andatoelation of basic and diluted earnings per

share (EPS) is required.

The numerators and denominators used in computing EPS are summarized as follow

Denominator Earnings
Numerator (Amounts) (Shares in Per Share (NT$)
Pretax After Tax Thousands) Pretax  After Tax
2011
Basic EPS $ 2,221,380 $ 1,826,615 1,645,991
Less: Preferred dividends (181,50% (181,50%
Basic EPS
Income for the year
attributable to common
stockholders 2,039,875 1,645,110 $ 124 $ 1.00
Effect of potential dilutive
convertible preferred stock 181,505 181,505 302,509
Diluted EPS $ 2,221,380 $ 1,826,615 1,948500 $ 114 $ 0.94
2010
Basic EPS $ 1,832,512 $ 1,410,425 1524818 $ 120 $ 0.92
Effect of potential dilutive
convertible preferred stock - - 302,509
Diluted EPS $ 1,832,512 $ 1,410,425 1,827,327 $ 100 $ 0.77
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26. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to those disclosed in other footnotes, significant dcdiosnis between the Bank and related
parties are summarized as follows:

a. Related parties and their relationships with the Bank

Related Party

Relationship with the Bank

Union Finance and Leasing International Corporation Subsidiary

(UFLIC)
Union Information Technology Corporation (UIT)
Union Insurance Broker Company (UIB)
Union Finance International (H.K.) Limited

Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary

Union Securities Investment Trust Corporation (USITCpubsidiary

Union Capital (Cayman) Corp.
New Asian Ventures Ltd.
Union Bills Finance Corporation (UBF)

Union Real-Estate Management Corporation
Hung-Kou Construction Inc., Ltd. (“*Hung-Kou”)

Union Ran Zheng Co., Ltd. (URZ)

The Liberty Times Co., Ltd. (“Liberty Times”)

Long Shan Lin Corporation
Yong-Xuan Co., Ltd. (*Yong-Xuan”)

Liu Jin Fu

Union Enterprise Construction Co., Ltd. (UECC)
Zhong Li Venture Corporation

Jiang Jhen Syong

Lin Ci Yong

Bao Xing Investment Corporation

Yu-Pang Co., Ltd. (“Yu-Pang”)

Li Tsai Jhao Mei

T-Movies Theater Co.

Yu Quan Kai Fa Co., Ltd.

Morgan Stanley Union Bank Assets Management
Corporation (MSUB)

Liang Ji Investment Corporation

Union Recreation Enterprise Corporation
Entie Securities Finance Co.

Others
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Subsidiary of UFLIC

Subsidiary of UFLIC

Subsidiary (merged with the Bank on
August 16, 2010, with the Bank as
survivor entity)

Equity-method investee

Its chairman is a second-degree relative of
the Bank’s director/general manager

Its chairman is a second-degree relative of
the Bank’s director/general manager

The Bank’s director/general manager and
the chairman of the board of directors are
the director and supervisor, respectively,
of Liberty Times

Its chairman is a second-degree relative of
the Bank’s director/general manager

Its chairman is a second-degree relative of
the Bank’s director/general manager

Director

Director

Director

Director

Supervisor

Supervisor

Supervisor

Wife of the Bank’s director

Wife of the Bank’s directgiLee Yu Quan, i
its chairman.

The wife of the Bank’s director, Lee Yu
Quan, is its chairman.

Related party in substance

Related party in substance

Related party in substance

Related party in substance (merged with
Capital Group, the survivor company, on
March 1, 2010)

Directors, supervisors, managers, and their
relatives and affiliates.



b. Significant transactions with related parties:
1) Loans

December 31, 2011

Differences
in Terms of
Highest Transaction
Balance in the Loan Classification with Those
Year Ended Nonper- for
Account December 31, Ending Normal forming Unrelated
Type Volume or Name 2011 Balance Loans Loans Colals Parties
Consumer loans 3 $ 1,150 $ 1,010 $ 1,010 $ - - None
Self-used housing mortgagel6 61,489 50,894 50,894 - Real estate None
loans
Other loans Union Finance and 1,634,634 1,568,880 1,568,880 - Land, building and None
Leasing International time deposit
Corporation
December 31, 2010
Differences
in Terms of
Highest Transaction
Balance in the Loan Classification with Those
Year Ended Nonper- for
Account December 31, Ending Normal forming Unrelated
Type Volume or Name 2010 Balance Loans Loans Coltals Parties
Consumer loans 2 $ 1,301 $ 708 $ 708 $ - None
Self-used housing mortgage1 Real estate None
loans 86,108 32,616 32,616
Other loans Union Finance and Land, building and None
Leasing International time deposit
Corporation 1,562,480 1,287,851 1,287,851
Other loans Long Shan Lin Land and buildings None
Corporation 1,350,000 600,000 600,000 -
Other loans Li Chang Yao Ye Co. 58,807 35,314 35,314 - Land and factory None
Other loans T-Movies Theater Co. 99,479 99,479 99,479 - Land and buildings None
December 31 Interest Revenue
Amount % Rate Amount %
2011 $ 1,620,784 0.85% 1.02%-3.82% $ 34,181 0.36%
2010 2,055,968 1.08% 0.30%-3.10% 30,334 0.33%
2) Deposits
December 31 Interest Expense
Amount % Rate Amount %
2011 $ 3,899,528 1.21% 0%-4.76% $ 28,561 0.99%
2010 5121,726  1.77% 0%-5.35% 26,737 1.06%
3) Guarantees and letters of credit
December 31, 2011
Highest Balance of
Balance in the Guarantees
Year Ended and Letters
December 31, Ending of Credit
Name 2011 Balance (Note) Rate Collateral
Union Recreation Enterprise $ 82,232 $ 79,749 $ - 0.3%-0.5%  Time deposits
Corporation
The Liberty Times Co., Ltd. 62,178 4,942 - 0.05% Land and buildings
Long Shan Lin Corporation 71,040 71,040 - 0.3% Time deposits
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December 31, 2010

Highest Balance of
Balance in the Guarantees
Year Ended and Letters
December 31, Ending of Credit
Name 2010 Balance (Note) Rate Collateral
Union Recreation Enterprise $ 88,442 $ 79,749 $ - 0.3%-0.5%  Time deposits
Corporation
The Liberty Times Co., Ltd. 49,566 8,866 - 0.05% Land and buildings
Long Shan Lin Corporation 71,040 71,040 - 0.3% Time deposits
Union Finance International (H.K.) 80,522 - 0.5% None
Limited

Note: Reserve for guarantee loss is provided on the basis datitinated unrecoverable amount.

4) Due from banks (included in due from the Central Bank and other banks) - UBF

Highest
Balance
During the Balance as of Interest
Year December 31 Rate Revenue
2010 $ 1,700,000 $ - 0.15%-0.37% $ 559

5) Call loans (included in call loans and due to banks) - UBF

Highest
Balance
During the Balance as of Interest
Year December 31 Rate Expense
2010 $ 200,000 $ - 0.15% $ 8
6) Securities brokerage fees
Years Ended December 31
Amount %
2011 $ 2,821 4.03
2010 2,692 3.20

7) Consulting and advisory contract

The Bank and UFLIC entered into a three-year consulting contra@ctober 2009. UFLIC's
services included consultation on management, marketing, and promaiiitieamn auto loans as
well as on loan management and collection of overdue loangegttuding the approval of loan
applications). Before the expiry of the contract, the Bank and UEhH{&d the contract, and this
contract termination was approved by the board of directors on M#&,ch011. The consulting
fees and related expenses paid were $19,037 thousand in 2011 and $%y%86d in 2010 (both
amounts included in other operating expenses), and the accrued eaperfs2010 was $8,288
thousand.
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8) Leases
a) The Bank as lessee

Under operating lease agreements with terms of one yearetydiars, the Bank rents from
related parties office spaces for use by the Head Offingst,TInternational Banking Dept.,
Wealth Management, Consumer Banking Dept., Security Finance, &pdit Card Dept.,
Northern Collaterals Assumed Appraise Center, and fivewches. Rentals are payable
quarterly, with some contracts allowing placement with the Iessiolease deposits in lieu of
rental payments. Rental expenses and lease deposits were as. follow

Lease Deposit (Included in Rental Expense (Included ir
Other Financial Assets) Other Operating Expense)

Amount % Amount %

2011

Yu-Pang $ 454,400 10.19 $ 13,634 0.59
Hung-Kuo 218,760 491 100,045 4.32
Yong-Xuan 13,649 0.31 57,475 2.48
UECC 4,384 0.10 9,253 2.40
UFLIC - - 3,447 0.15
2010

Yu-Pang 454,400 7.83 12,498 0.59
Hung-Kuo 219,105 3.77 99,910 4.68
Yong-Xuan 13,905 0.24 57,452 2.69
UECC 4,384 0.08 9,242 0.43
UFLIC - - 2,117 0.10

The Bank rented cars for business use from UFLIC; the rerpanses were $7,495 thousand
in 2011 and $5,969 thousand in 2010. Rentals payable as of December 31, 2@01Gnd
were $64 thousand and $32 thousand, respectively.

b) The Bank as lessor

The Bank’s South Taoyuan Branch, Kaohsiung Branch, Mincynan Branclyj Gnéanch and
Fucheng Branch leased part of their office premises to UFLICrupdzating lease agreements
starting from May 2011 to April 2016, from June 2011 to December 204, April 2011 to
September 2017, from July 2009 to July 2014, and from April 2011 to February 2014,
respectively. The leasing revenues received were $1,131 thibusa2011 and $2,130
thousand in 2010. The lease deposits received (included in otheridinkatduilities) were
$227 thousand in 2011 and $492 thousand in 2010. The Bank’s Beitun BraseH part of

its office to UBF under an operating lease agreement effefrtom February 2006 to August
2010. The leasing revenues received were $261 thousand in 2010.

9) The disposal of nhonperforming loans and assuming of related collaterals
On June 27, 2006 and September 20, 2006, the Bank sold to Morgan Stanley Uhkiaofa of
its nonperforming loans and related collateral property for $995,0800sand and $615,025

thousand, respectively. Of this amount, $138,783 thousand and $309,601 thousandblead not
received as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively (refer to Note 15).
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10) Available-for-sale financial assets

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Bank had purchased 48,344 thousand and 23#&4¥ thous
units, respectively, of beneficial certificates issued BSITEC, which amounted to $554,130
thousand and $306,792 thousand, respectively.

11) UIT sold computers, related material and software and provateark service to the Bank. The
related purchase and service fee in 2011 and 2010 were $90,638 thousaf8,48d $housand,
respectively.

12) The Bank provided insurance consulting service and salesassito UIB. The commission and
fee revenues were $145,951 thousand in 2011 and $166,049 thousand in 2010. nhissicom
revenues on insurance premium (included in commissions and feausvwere $173,825
thousand in 2011 and $159,101 thousand in 2010.

Under the Banking Law, except for consumer and government loadgs @gtended by the Bank to
any related party should be fully secured, and the creditstéor related parties should be similar to
those for unrelated parties.

For transactions between the Bank and related parties, the &eensimilar to those transacted with
third parties, except for the preferential interest rafesed to employees for savings and loans within
prescribed amounts.

c. Compensation of directors, supervisors and management personnel:

Years Ended December 31

2011 2010
Salaries $ 17,499 $ 18,700
Incentives 3,877 2,820
Traveling fare 1,732 1,840
Special compensation 480 480
Car rental and oil subsidy 2,486 1,569

$ 26,074 $ 25,409

27. PLEDGED ASSETS

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, government bonds and bank debentures, which am&l7@8a0
thousand and $231,800 thousand (both amounts included in other financial esse¢s}jvely, had been
provided to the courts and the Bank of Taiwan as guarantee demogt®visional seizures against the
debtors’ properties, as reserve for credit card receisahteguarantee deposits on bills finance operations,
and as trust reserve. In addition, as of December 31, 2011 and 20dGabieccertificates of deposit,
which amounted to $2,500,000 thousand and $3,000,000 thousand, respectively (both iaciodetsin
other financial assets), had been provided to the Central Bank asrabfatelay-term overdraft.
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28. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Financial instruments, contingencies and commitments of the Baikidition to those disclosed in Note
30, are summarized as follows:

a. Operating leases

The Bank rents several office premises for its branchdsruoperating leases ranging from 2 to 20
years. Rentals are payable monthly, quarterly or annually. thEd¥anking E. Rd., San Chung, and
Wujia branches, lease deposits are made in lieu of lease paymdiite rental expenses were
recognized at imputed interests of 1.08% in 2011 and 0.83% in 2010. FHuotwr@um lease
payments are as follows:

Year Amount

2012 $ 388,782
2013 353,551
2014 287,750
2015 188,017
2016 73,837

The present value of total rentals of $272,632 thousand for beyond 20icuts$254,826 thousand,
discounted at the Bank’s one-year time deposit interest rate of 1.360% emiizzS1, 2011.

b. Computer equipment purchase contracts

The Bank had contracts to buy computer equipment and software for $44gisand, of which
$19,662 thousand had been paid as of December 31, 2011.

c. Securities sold under repurchase agreements
As of December 31, 2011, securities with a total cost of $34,522,173atitbwgere sold under
agreements for repurchase between January 2012 and May 2012. Thieaspprice is based on the
notional amount plus interest, which is calculated at the agreed-upasintee.

d. Securities purchased under resell agreements

As of December 31, 2011, securities with a total cost of $251/A6and were purchased under
agreements to resell for $251,713 thousand in January 2012.

e. Balance sheet of trust accounts and trust property and equipnemitacc

Balance Sheet of Trust Accounts
December 31, 2011

Trust Assets Amount Trust Liabilities and Capital Amount
Bank deposits $ 3,015,199 Income tax payable $ 52
Investments Marketable securities payable 7,330,424
Mutual funds 33,146,210 Trust capital 44,037,252
Common stock 172,174 Reserve and deficit (139,004
Short-term bills and securities
purchased under resell agreements 73,565
Accounts receivable 1,612
Stock in custody 7,330,424
Real estate - land and building 7,489,540
Total $ 51,228,724 Total $ 51,228,724
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Balance Sheet of Trust Accounts

December 31, 2010

Trust Assets Amount Trust Liabilities and Capital
Bank deposits $ 2,145,758 Income tax payable
Investments Expenses payable
Mutual funds 33,188,406 Marketable securities payable
Common stock 169,444 Trust capital
Short-term bills and securities Reserve and deficit
purchased under resell agreements 39,686
Accounts receivable 1,819
Stock in custody 6,464,159
Real estate - land and building 2,975,144
Total $ 44,984,416 Total

Trust Income Statement
Year Ended December 31, 2011

Trust income

Interest revenue - demand accounts

Interest revenue - time deposits

Interest revenue - short-term bills and securities purchased under rese

agreements
Cash dividend
Realized capital gain - fund
Income from beneficial certificates
Total trust income
Trust expense
Management expense
Taxation
Realized capital loss - fund
Other
Total trust expense
Loss before tax
Income tax expense
Loss after tax
Unrealized capital gain - GTSM stock
Unrealized capital gain - fund
Unrealized capital loss - GTSM stock
Unrealized capital loss - fund

Net loss

Note:
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Amount

$ 26
1

6,464,159
38,713,535
(193,305

$ 44,984,416

Amount

$ 472
5,392

232
17,625
571
618
24,910

4,398
164,689
2,297
13,084
184,468
(159,558)
(2,423
(161,981)
40,744
243
(868)
(1,065

$ (122,927

The trust income statements above are not included in the Baiokise statements.



Trust Income Statement
Year Ended December 31, 2010

Trust income
Interest revenue - demand accounts
Interest revenue - time deposits

Interest revenue - short-term bills and securities purchased under rese

agreements
Cash dividend
Other revenue
Realized capital gain - fund
Income from beneficial certificates
Total trust income
Trust expense
Management expense
Taxation
Realized capital loss - fund
Other
Total trust expense
Loss before tax
Income tax expense
Loss after tax
Unrealized capital gain - GTSM stock
Unrealized capital gain - fund
Unrealized capital loss - fund

Net loss

Amount

$ 197
3,401

8
11,821
912
1,962
1,047
19,348

4,026
207,800
270
34,532
246,628

(227,280)
(236

(227,516)
43,817
972

(666
$ (183,393

Note: The trustincome statements above are not included in the Bentkise statements.

Trust Property and Equipment Accounts
December 31, 2011

Investment Portfolio

Bank deposits
Investments
Mutual funds
Common stock
Short-term bills and securities purchased under resell agreements
Accounts receivable
Stock in custody
Real estate - land and buildings
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Amount
$ 3,015,199

33,146,210
172,174
73,565
1,612
7,330,424
7,489,540

$ 51,228,724



Trust Property and Equipment Accounts
December 31, 2010

Investment Portfolio Amount
Bank deposits $ 2,145,758
Investments
Mutual funds 33,188,406
Common stock 169,444
Short-term bills and securities purchased under resell agreements 39,686
Accounts receivable 1,819
Stock in custody 6,464,159
Real estate - land and buildings 2,975,144
$ 44,984,416

29. AVERAGE AMOUNT AND AVERAGE INTEREST RATE OF INT EREST-EARNING ASSETS
AND INTEREST-BEARING LIABILITIES

Average balance is calculated by the daily average balsiniceerest-earning assets and interest-bearing

liabilities.
2011

Average Average

Balance Rate (%)
Interest-earning assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 913,309 0.79
Due from the Central Bank and other banks 80,163,764 0.77
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 6,500,141 0.77
Securities purchased under resell agreements 347,839 0.73
Discounts and loans 191,483,124 2.62
Accounts receivable - credit card 10,894,811 9.82
Available-for-sale financial assets 7,993,028 0.95
Held-to-maturity investments 2,270,566 3.16
No-active market debt instruments 50,017,185 5.16
Interest-bearing liabilities
Call loans and due to other banks 657,356 0.11
Due to Chunghwa Post Co., Ltd. 8,076,022 1.31
Securities sold under repurchase agreements 35,821,867 0.62
Demand deposits 39,637,391 0.14
Savings - demand deposits 84,519,439 0.27
Time deposits 54,569,995 1.08
Time-savings deposits 119,090,755 1.30
Negotiable certificates of deposit 1,395,520 0.68
Bank debentures 4,846,959 2.51
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2010
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Average Average
Balance Rate (%)
Interest-earning assets
Cash and cash equivalents 894,294 0.70
Due from the Central Bank and other banks 66,476,771 0.55
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 1,921,479 0.67
Securities purchased under resell agreements 448,783 0.39
Discounts and loans 178,326,954 2.52
Accounts receivable - credit card 12,353,069 11.52
Available-for-sale financial assets 8,217,169 0.98
Held-to-maturity investments 6,005,322 491
No-active market debt instruments 52,477,456 4.55
Interest-bearing liabilities
Call loans and due to other banks 1,251,244 0.17
Due to Chunghwa Post Co., Ltd. 14,614,516 1.08
Securities sold under repurchase agreements 33,310,743 0.58
Demand deposits 34,581,322 0.10
Savings - demand deposits 78,976,152 0.24
Time deposits 51,348,591 0.87
Time-savings deposits 107,991,613 1.18
Negotiable certificates of deposit 830,071 0.34
Bank debentures 7,322,419 2.64
30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
a. Fair values of financial instruments
December 31
2011 2010
Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
Assets
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss 8,167,543 8,167,543 3,017,823 3,017,823
Available-for-sale financial assets 7,516,896 7,516,896 6,230,049 6,230,049
Other short-term financial assets 125,365,389 125,365,389 86,848,480 86,848,480
Discounts and loans, net 190,679,993 190,679,993 189,657,099 189,657,099
Held-to-maturity financial assets 1,313,015 1,328,865 3,272,634 3,301,223
Financial assets carried at cost 450,451 - 452,581 -
No-active market debt instruments 44,723,018 44,569,296 50,878,823 50,674,438
Other financial assets 4,457,747 4,457,747 5,805,683 5,805,683
Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss 33,852 33,852 51,584 51,584
Other short-term financial liabilities 47,321,184 47,321,184 47,654,908 47,654,908
Deposits 322,649,113 322,649,113 289,424,306 289,424,306
Bank debentures 4,890,000 5,023,408 4,890,000 4,932,140
Other financial liabilities 337,852 337,852 318,027 318,027



b. Methods and assumptions applied in estimating the fair vdiselssures for financial instruments are
as follows:

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

7

The carrying amounts of the following short-term financiatruiments approximate their fair

values because of their short maturities: Cash and castaknts, due from the Central Bank
and other banks, securities purchased under resell agreemecg$vables (tax refundable

excluded), call loans and due to banks, securities sold undechaparagreements, payable (tax
payable excluded) and remittances.

Fair values of financial instruments designated asFWTPL and available-for-sale or
held-to-maturity financial assets are based on their guymteds in an active market. For those
instruments with no quoted market prices, their fair values datermined using valuation
techniques incorporating estimates and assumptions consisthrthagse generally used by other
market participants to price financial instruments.

Fair values of derivatives are based on their quoted pritegniactive market. For those
derivatives with no quoted market prices, their fairueal are determined using valuation
techniques incorporating estimates and assumptions consisterthase generally used by other
market participants to price financial instruments.

Fair values of forward contracts, interest rate swapcaogs-currency swap contracts are estimated
on the basis of forward rates provided by Reuters.

The fair values of no-active debt instruments are based oredjyoices of counter-parties and
adjusted by evaluations of debtor’s credit.

Discounts and loans and deposits are interest-earning asdetgerest-bearing liabilities. Thus,
their carrying amounts represent fair values. The fawevaf nonperforming loans is based on
their carrying amount, which is net of allowance for credit losses.

Financial assets carried at cost are investments in uncgsltdees, i.e., shares that have no quoted
prices in an active market and entail an unreasonably tigt to determine their fair values.
Therefore, no fair value is presented.

Refundable deposits have no specified maturity date; thus ntbeiet value is estimated on the
basis of their carrying value in the balance sheet. Thgimgrvalue of the guarantee deposits
received is used as the basis to estimate their market values.

The fair values of bank debentures are estimated on thedbgmices published by the GreTai
Securities Market.

The fair values of forward contracts, cross-currency swajpams and interest rate swap contracts

are based on present value techniques. Option fair valubsised on estimates using the Black
Scholes model.
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C.

Fair values of financial assets and financial liaégdidetermined on the basis of quoted market prices
or estimates made using valuation techniques are summarized as follows:

December 31

2011 2010
Quoted Market  Estimates Based Quoted Market Estimates Based
Prices on Valuation Prices on Valuation
Techniques Techniques
Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss $ 98,257 $ 8,069,286 $ 33,093 $ 2,984,730
Available-for-sale financial assets 2,416,130 5,100,766 1,287,265 4,942,784
Held-to-maturity investments - 1,328,865 - 3,301,223
No-active market debt instruments - 44,569,296 - 50,674,438
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss - 33,852 - 51,584

The fair value hierarchy of the Bank’s financial instruments as oémber 31, 2011 was as follows:

December 31, 2011

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Nonderivative financial instruments
Assets
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (FVTPL)
Held-for-trading financial assets
Stock $ 98,257 $ 98,257 $ - $ -
Debt instruments 102,718 - 102,718 -
Commercial paper 3,575,646 - 3,575,646 -
Negotiable certificates of deposit 1,512,400 - 1,512,400 -
Financial assets designated as at
FVTPL on initial recognition 2,758,735 - 2,723,656 35,079
Available-for-sale financial assets
Stock 1,511,562 1,511,562 - -
Debt instruments 5,100,766 - 5,100,766 -
Beneficial certificates 904,568 904,568 - -
Held-to-maturity financial assets 1,328,865 - 1,328,865 -
No-active market debt instruments 44,569,296 - 44,569,296 -
Derivative financial instruments
Assets
Financial assets at FVTPL 119,787 - 118,790 997
Liabilities
Financial liabilities at FVTPL 33,852 - 32,855 997

1) The above table shows the financial instruments carri¢airatalue that have been categorized
under the three levels of fair value hierarchy.

2) Level 1 - quoted prices (unadjusted) in active marketgléortical assets or liabilities. As stated
in Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 3%inancial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement,” active markets are those with thile following conditions: (i)
the products traded in the market are homogeneous, (ii) willingpare available anytime in the
market, and (iii) price information is available to the public.

3) Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included in level tlatlgaobservable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e., prices) or indirectly (i.e., derivEEom prices).
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4) Level 3 - inputs not based on observable market data (unobservablg inputs

Other information on financial assets in level 3 in 2011 is as follows:

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Valuation Amount of Increase Amount of Decrease
Gain (Loss)
Beginning |in Net Income Purchase or Sale or Ending
Items Balance or Change in Transfer to Change in Transfer from Balance
Stockholders’| Fair Value Level 3 Fair Value Level 3
Equity
Financial assets at fair
value through profit o
loss
Financial assets
designated as at
FVTPL on initial
recognition $ 85,510 $ (431) $ 30,000 $ - $(80,000) $ - $ 35,079
Derivative financial
assets 7,491 (9,004) 25,816 - (23,306 - 997

Other information on financial liabilities in level 3 in 2011 id@l®ws:

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Valuation Amount of Increase Amount of Decrease
Gain (Loss)
Beginning |in Net Income Purchase or Sale or Ending
Items Balance or Change in Transfer to Change in Transfer from Balance
Stockholders’| Fair Value Level 3 Fair Value Level 3
Equity
Financial liabilities at fai
value through profit o
loss
Derivative financial
liabilities $ 7,469 $ (9,248) $ 28,342 $ - $ (25,566) $ - $ 997

On financial instruments with fair values determined throughatain techniques, valuation showed
gains of $39,842 thousand in 2011 and $89,326 thousand in 2010.

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the interest income (expensep@ssodth financial assets
(liabilities) other than those at FVTPL was as follows:

Years Ended December 31

2011 2010
Total interest income $ 9,496,704 $ 9,153,962
Total interest expense 2,884,122 2,516,524

For the changes in fair value of available-for-sale fir@rassets, the Bank recognized in stockholders’
equity the unrealized losses of $279,928 thousand in 2011 and theizexregdins of $259,088
thousand in 2010, of which $19,847 thousand and $131,305 thousand, respectivelgclassdied to
current gain in the income statement.

Financial risks

1) Market risk

On the risk management of the Bank, please refer to Note 31.
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2) Credit risk

The Bank is exposed to credit risk in the event of default orramiatby counter-parties or third
parties. The Bank makes credit commitments and issues iahgouarantees and standby letters
of credit only after careful evaluation of customers’ crgdithiness. On the basis of the result of
the credit evaluation, the Bank may require collateral befomevings are made against the credit
facilities. As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the ratios afredcloans to total loans were
84.49% and 82.82%, respectively, and the ratio of secured financial gesramd standby letters
of credits to the totals of these two financial instemts were 37.53% and 36.13%, respectively.
Collaterals held vary and may include cash, inventories, nadolkeesecurities, and other properties.
If customers default, the Bank will, as required by circum&snféoreclose the collaterals or
execute other rights arising from the guarantees receivdie miaximum potential amount of
future payments represents the notional amounts that couldthetis the guarantees if there is a
total default by the guaranteed parties, without consideratipossible recoveries under recourse
provisions or of collaterals held or pledged.

The Bank has significant credit commitments principallytiegato credit cards issued and credit
facilities extended. The terms of most of the credit comentsirange from a half year to 10
years. Loan interest rates ranged from 1.40% to 7.25% in 2011 and.62%b to 7.00% in 2010,
and the highest interest rate for credit cards throughout meass,yincluding 2011, has been
19.99%. The Bank also provided guarantees on customers’ loans arsl détteedit obtained
from third parties. The maturity dates of these commitmeats wot concentrated in a particular
period.

The amounts of financial contracts with off-balance-sheet ciisklg as of December 31, 2011 and
2010 were as follows:

December 31

2011 2010
Credit commitments for credit cards $ 172,680,945 $ 174,597,000
Guarantees and standby letters of credit 10,223,821 9,837,554
Irrevocable loan commitments 900,303 535,838

The maximum exposure of counterparties presented above wereohasealuations of off-balance
sheet credit risk contracts with positive amounts on thanba sheet date. Concentrations of
credit risk exist when changes in economic or other fastordarly affect groups of counterparties
whose aggregate credit exposure is material in relatiohetdank’s total credit exposure. The
Bank manages credit risk by maintaining a diversified plaotfdéimiting its exposure to any one
geographic region, country or individual creditor and monitoringemosure continually. Credit
risk profiles by region were not significant on December 31128nd 2010. The Bank’s most
significant concentrations of credit risk as of December 31, 20ii1 2010 are summarized as
follows:

Carrying Amount

Credit Risk Profile December 31

by Counter-party 2011 2010
Consumer $ 140,643,383 $ 146,782,202
Private sector 39,922,216 35,005,468
Government - 2,174,000

$ 180,565,599 $ 183,961,670
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Credit Risk Profile December 31, Credit Risk Profile December 31,

by Industry Sector 2011 by Industry Sector 2010
Real estate activities $ 14,658,821 Real estate activities $ 12,225,152
Commercial 7,450,261 Commercial 7,521,571
Manufacturing 6,022,603 Finance and insurance 4,943,447
$ 28,131,685 $ 24,690,170

The amounts of the credit risks of the above loans were the same aartlyaigcamounts.
Liquidity risk

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the liquidity reserve ratios 2@&7% and 21.13%,
respectively. The Bank has sufficient capital and workiagital to execute all its contract
obligations and has no liquidity risk. The possibility of falito liquidate the derivative financial
instruments at reasonable prices is remote.

The management policy of the Bank is to match the maturity ratedest rate of its assets and
liabilities. Due to the uncertainty resulting from termdgransactions, the maturities and interest
rates of assets and liabilities usually did not fully mattheother. This gap may give rise to gain
or loss.

The Bank applied the appropriate method to group assets and liabilifies maturity analysis of
assets and liabilities was as follows:

December 31, 2011

Due Between Due Between
after One Month after Three Due Between
Due in and Three Months and Six after Six Months Due After
One Month Months Months and One Year One Year Total

Assets
Cash and cash

equivalents $ 7,887,592 $ 135,000 $ 162,000 $ 206,000 $ - $ 8,390,592
Due from the Central

Bank and other banks 73,106,171 21,426,807 1,553,316 2,584,946 3,110,529 101,781,769
Financial assets at fair

value through profit

or loss 5,569,794 26,712 1,541 1,326 2,568,170 8,167,543
Securities purchased

under resell

agreements 251,626 - - - - 251,626
Receivables 5,430,305 3,480,702 2,421,023 3,932,730 1,153,479 16,418,239
Discounts and loans 8,576,978 10,365,330 15,542,071 38,094,496 120,027,909 192,606,784
Available-for-sale

financial assets 150,502 - 231,413 400,832 6,734,149 7,516,896
Held-to-maturity

investments 393,765 - - 234,171 685,079 1,313,015
No active market debt

instruments - - - - 44,723,018 44,723,018

101,366,733 35,434,551 19,911,364 45,454,501 179,002,333 381,169,482

Liabilities

Call loans and due to

banks 34,266 - 2,500,000 4,472,990 - 7,007,256
Financial liabilities at

fair value through

profit or loss 23,814 8,778 635 625 - 33,852
Securities sold under
repurchase
agreements 21,263,332 13,248,798 10,043 - - 34,522,173
Payables 4,169,924 779,244 486,689 222,011 189,434 5,847,302
Deposits and remittance 28,260,490 39,075,349 51,066,384 95,219,848 109,134,839 322,756,910
Bank debentures - - - 1,190,000 3,700,000 4,890,000
53,751,826 53,112,169 54,063,751 101,105,474 113,024,273 375,057,493
Net liquidity gap $ 47614907 $ (17.677.613  $ (34.152.38)  $ (55.650.97p $ 65978060 S  6.111.989
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December 31, 2010

Due Between Due Between
after One Month after Three Due Between
Duein and Three Months and Six  after Six Months Due After
One Month Months Months and One Year One Year Total

Assets
Cash and cash

equivalents $ 8,441,278 $ 135,000 $ 162,000 $ 206,000 $ - $ 8,944,278
Due from the Central

Bank and other banks 51,001,623 2,811,383 2,584,032 2,142,937 2,784,302 61,324,277
Financial assets at fair

value through profit

or loss 2,992,371 9,299 11,652 4,501 - 3,017,823
Securities purchased

under resell

agreements 39,500 - - - - 39,500
Receivables 5,814,951 3,874,896 2,710,456 4,409,251 1,713,053 18,522,607
Discounts and loans 7,801,276 8,243,834 14,237,611 32,244,742 128,555,329 191,092,792
Available-for-sale

financial assets - - 253,804 676,567 5,299,678 6,230,049
Held-to-maturity

investments 141,320 - - 1,885,435 1,245,879 3,272,634
No active market debt

instruments 221 442 664 1,327 50,876,169 50,878,823

76,232,540 15,074,854 19,960,219 41,570,760 190,484,410 343,322,783

Liabilities

Call loans and due to

banks 61,436 - 5,700,000 4,525,910 - 10,287,346
Financial liabilities at

fair value through

profit or loss 34,584 3,997 8,451 4,401 151 51,584
Securities sold under
repurchase
agreements 26,637,022 6,959,904 - - - 33,596,926
Payables 2,271,780 787,827 406,654 185,823 186,812 3,838,896
Deposits and remittance 31,346,739 35,690,114 49,400,560 77,069,543 96,098,898 289,605,854
Bank debentures 2,000 - - 1,988,000 2,900,000 4,890,000
60,353,561 43,441,842 55,515,665 83,773,677 99,185,861 342,270,606
Net liquidity gap $ 15878979  $ (28.366.988 $ (3555544F  $ (42.202.91]  $ 91.298549  $ 1052177

31. MARKET RISK CONTROL AND HEDGE STRATEGY
a. Risk managing indicators and strategy
The Bank’s main risks are credit risk, market risk and ligpiiisk. The risk management policies are
1) short-term goal - to integrate and collect any risk bgto set up quantifiable risk quote; and 2)
long-term goal - to maximize stockholders’ return by setting ujskamanagement and evaluation
system and properly allocating capital in a way that is most beng¢@aédckholders.
b. Quantifiable risk measurement and control
1) Credit risk: The goal is to control risk at a toleraleleel by setting up measurement tools that
quantify risk across products and businesses. Then, the Babkiststd model loan procedures
for employees to follow to ensure the protection of stockholders and aepdsdm loan risks.

a) Setting up credit risk measurement system and databaseméhkeng loans and reserving the
historical data of credit risk measurement.

b) Setting up a credit rating system linked to the interest spread.

¢) Adjusting the credit risk measurement model and instrumentight of the economy,
forecasting and customer attributes to ensure that data matchcactaat conditions.
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2)

3)

4)

Market risk: The goal is to set up risk identifying,alenating, monitoring, reporting and
controlling procedures. The Bank has established risk managgnoeetiures and mechanisms
under the guidelines of Basel Il and plans to build a risk manadesystem to ensure that the
outcomes of risk-taking activities are predictable andnétten the Bank’s risk tolerance parameter
and that there is an appropriate balance between risk and reward.

a) The trade limit control: The limit approved by the board céafiors or senior management
committees includes the limit on investments, transactions imgpleounter-parties and
traders’ financial instrument transactions as well as totinmdimit.

b) The price risk control: The marked-to-market valuatiethod is used to measure the open
position on the basis of daily settlement prices. The data wositisity analysis of all
outstanding positions and stop-loss monitor information can be obtdirmaylh the trading
management system.

c) Therisk report: To ensure risk control effectively, tartding position reports and integrated
risk management reports are available on a continuing basis.

Operational risk:  For risk management, the Bank establishéalltheing:
a) Strategy and control procedures at all bank levels;

b) A database and reporting system on operational risk losshgatativity unit or activity and
keep the data to improve internal control;

¢) An information and employee backup system to carry out essp+rocedures in certain
situations.
Liquidity risk

The Bank actively manages the diversification of its depiadiilities by source, type of depositor,
instrument and term. It measures and forecasts cash commsitofht and conducts regular
liquidity crisis stress testing. The Bank’s liquidity dogency plan provides the framework from
which to determine an appropriate action plan in the event of a liquidstg.cri
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32. CAPITALADEQUACY RATIO
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, %)

Year December 31, 2011
ltems Union Bank Consolidated
Tier 1 capital $ 15,534,886 $ 16,252,529
Eligible capita T?er 2 cap?tal 5,245,841 5,757,287
Tier 3 capital - -
Eligible capital 20,780,727 22,009,816
Standardized approach 157,020,288 164,071,644
Credit risk |Internal ratings-based approach - -
Securitization - 37,186
Basic indicator approach 15,633,843 17,361,014
Risk-weighted OperationalStandardized approach/alternative
assets risk standardized approach i )
Advanced measurement approach - -
. |Standardized approach 5,666,525 5,790,138
Market risk
Internal model approach - -
Risk-weighted assets 178,320,666 187,259,882
Capital adequacy ratio 11.65 11.75
Ratio of Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets 8.71 8.68
Ratio of Tier 2 capital to risk-weighted assets 2.94 3.07
Ratio of Tier 3 capital to risk-weighted assets - -
Ratio of common stock to total assets 414 4(10
Leverage ratio 412 4.26

Note 1: The above tables were prepared in accordance withRiébgulations Governing the Capital
Adequacy Ratio of Banks” and related calculation tables.

Note 2: Formulas used were as follows:
1) Eligible capital = Tier 1 capital + Tier 2 capital + Tier 3 talpi

2) Risk-weighted assets = Risk-weighted asset for cngslt + Capital requirements for
operational risk and market risk x 12.5.

3) Capital adequacy ratio = Eligible capital + Risk-weightesbtss

4) Ratio of Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets = Tier ltabpiRisk-weighted assets

5) Ratio of Tier 2 capital to risk-weighted assets = Tier 2tabpiRisk-weighted assets

6) Ratio of Tier 3 capital to risk-weighted assets = Tier 3tabpiRisk-weighted assets

7) Ratio of common stock to total assets = Common stock + Total assets

8) Leverage ratio = Tier 1 capital + Adjusted averagel tassets (the average total asset -
goodwill, deferred losses on the sale of nonperforming loans andntbant of ineligible

items [as defined in the “Methods for Calculating the Elgi@apital and Risk-weighted
Assets of Banks”] deducted from the Tier 1 capital)
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(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, %)

Year December 31, 2010
Iltems Union Bank Consolidated
Tier 1 capital $ 13,539,665 $ 14,200,593
Eligible capita T?er 2 cap?tal 3,715,928 4,162,325
Tier 3 capital - -
Eligible capital 17,255,593 18,362,918
Standardized approach 154,210,916 161,235,905
Credit risk |Internal ratings-based approach - -
Securitization 629 54,476
Basic indicator approach 14,993,291 16,722,350
Risk-weighted OperationalStandardized approach/alternative
Assets risk standardized approach i )
Advanced measurement approach - -
. |Standardized approach 3,225,875 3,314,250
Market risk
Internal model approach - -
Risk-weighted assets 172,430,711 181,326,981
Capital adequacy ratio 10.01 10.13
Ratio of Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets 7.85 7.83
Ratio of Tier 2 capital to risk-weighted assets 216 2.30
Ratio of Tier 3 capital to risk-weighted assets - -
Ratio of common stock to total assets 4.563 4,50
Leverage ratio 3.85 3.94

33. ASSET QUALITY, CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT EXTENSIO NS, INTEREST RATE

SENSITIVITY, PROFITABILITY AND MATURITY ANALYSIS OF

a. Credit risks

1) Asset quality: Table 3 (attached)

2) Concentration of credit extensions

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, %)

Year Ended December 31, 2011

Year Ended Decemi&, 2010

Total Amount

Total Amount

of Credit Percentage of Credit Percentage
Rank Industry Endorsement | of Equity | Rank Industry Endorsement | of Equity
or Other (%) or Other (%)
Transactions Transactions

1 |B Group - real estate $2,602,304 11.85 1 | AGroup - real estate $3,551,584 17.67
2 |AGroup - real estate 2,411,150 10.98 2 | B Group - real estate 2,569,462 12.79
3 |D Group - real estate 2,397,075 10.92 3 | C Group - real estate 2,047,602 10.19
4 |F Group - real estate 2,072,000 9.44 4 | D Group - real estate 1,827,760 9.10
5 |C Group - real estate 1,724,612 7.86 5 | E Group - retail 1,222,234 6.08
6 | X Group - retail 1,638,163 7.46 6 | F Group - real estate 850,000 4.23
7 |T Group - real estate 924,800 4.21 7 | G Group - real estate 619,263 3.08
8 |Z Group - real estate 820,000 3.74 8 | H Group - retail 532,50( 2.65
9 |K Group - real estate 579,736 2.64 9 | | Group - aviation 502,666 2.50
10 [H Group - retail 553,800 2.52 10 |J Group - real estate 490,000 2.44
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b. Interest rate sensitivity

Interest Rate Sensitivity
December 31, 2011

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, %)

ltems 11to 90 Days | 91 to 180 Days 181 D\?geslrto Ong Over One Year Total
Interest rate-sensitive assets $ 275,141,618 6,125,053| $ 10,107,582 $ 20,086,084 $ 311,460,332
Interest rate-sensitive liabilities 248,327,221 11,622,163 33,659,561 17,370,392 310,979,337
Interest rate sensitivity gap 26,814,392 (5,497,110 (23,551,979 2,715,692 480,995
Net worth 13,450,135
Ratio of interest rate-sensitive assets to liab#iti 100.15%
Ratio of interest rate sensitivity gap to net worth 3.58%

Interest Rate Sensitivity
December 31, 2010

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, %)

Iltems 11to 90 Days | 91 to 180 Days 181 Dsé/:rto One Over One Year Total
Interest rate-sensitive assets $ 235,734,239 7,038,372| $ 13,691,427 $ 19,590,572 $ 276,054,610
Interest rate-sensitive liabilities 128,821,835 128,391,152 14,888,860 12,053,024 284,154,871
Interest rate sensitivity gap 106,912,404 (121,352,780 (1,197,433 7,537,548 (8,100,261
Net worth 13,834,570
Ratio of interest rate-sensitive assets to liabsiti 97.15%
Ratio of interest rate sensitivity gap to net worth (58.55%)

Note 1: The above amounts included only New Taiwan dollar amountdyéie onshore branches
of the Bank (i.e., excluding foreign currency).

Note 2: Interest rate-sensitive assets and liabilitiesnntea revenues or costs of interest-earning
assets and interest-bearing liabilities are affected by ihtetteschanges.

Note 3: Interest rate sensitivity gap = Interest rate-sensiisets - Interest rate-sensitive liabilities.

Note 4: Ratio of interest rate-sensitive assets toliligsi = Interest rate-sensitive assets/Interest
rate-sensitive liabilities.

Interest Rate Sensitivity
December 31, 2011

(In Thousands of U.S. Dollars, %)

ltems 11to 90 Days | 91 to 180 Days 181 D$g:rto Ong Over One Year Total
Interest rate-sensitive assets $ 103,477 $ 3224 $ 1,377 $ 1,568,448 $ 1,695,736
Interest rate-sensitive liabilities 1,272,769 350,168 149,771 446 113,
Interest rate sensitivity gap (1,169,29P) (327,734) (148,396) 1,568,002 (77,420
Net worth 318,843
Ratio of interest rate-sensitive assets to liabiti 95.63%
Ratio of interest rate sensitivity gap to net worth (24.28%)
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Interest Rate Sensitivity
December 31, 2010

(In Thousands of U.S. Dollars, %)

Interest rate-sensitive assets $ 226,652 $ 9810 $ 15,695 $ 1,754,528 $ 2,007,973
Interest rate-sensitive liabilities 1,257,750 388,720 144,937 3 1,791,40
Interest rate sensitivity gap (1,031,098) (377,622) (129,242) 1,754,528 216,566
Net worth 253,968
Ratio of interest rate-sensitive assets to liabsiti 112.09%
Ratio of interest rate sensitivity gap to net worth 85.27%

Note 1: The above amounts include U.S. dollar amounts held by the erstamches, OBU and
offshore branches of the Bank, excludes contingent assets and contirigkredia

Note 2: Interest rate-sensitive assets and liabilitiesnntea revenues or costs of interest-earning
assets and interest-bearing liabilities are affected by ihtetteschanges.

Note 3: Interest rate sensitivity gap = Interest rate-seasaggets - Interest rate-sensitive liabilities.

Note 4: Ratio of interest rate-sensitive assets tolitiaki = Interest rate-sensitive assets/Interest
rate-sensitive liabilities.

Liquidity risk

1) Profitability:

(%)
ltems 2011 2010
Return on total assets Before income tax 0.58 0.52
After income tax 0.48 0.40
Return on net worth Before income tax 10.56 9.74
After income tax 8.69 7.50
Profit margin 25.00 20.44
Note 1: Return on total assets = Income before (after) income taajfeveotal assets.
Note 2: Return on net worth = Income before (after) income tax/Averageonist
Note 3: Profit margin = Income after income tax/Total operating regenue
Note 4: Income before (after) income tax represents incomthéoyears ended December 31,

2011 and 2010.

2) Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities:

Maturity Analysis of Assets and Liabilities
December 31, 2011

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Remaining Period to Maturity

Total

1-30 Days 31-90 Days 91-180 Day4 181-365 Days Over 1 Year
Main capital inflow on
maturity $ 344,234,261 $ 101,950,941 $ 35,083,536 $ 19,263,322 $ 47,643,645 $ 140,292,817
Main capital outflow on
maturity 390,799,219 45,524,553 36,244,152 44,824,337 99,245,067 164,961,110
Gap (46,564,958) 56,426,388 (1,160,616 (25,561,015 (51,601,422 (24,668,293)
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Maturity Analysis of Assets and Liabilities
December 31, 2010

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Remaining Period to Maturity
Total 1-30 Days 31-90 Days 91-180 Day4 181-365 Days Over 1 Year
Main capital inflow on
maturity $ 300,562,620 $ 75,283,316/ $ 14,685,296 $ 19,667,562 $ 41,660,523| $ 149,265,923
Main capital outflow on
maturity 352,933,224 35,211,468 34,577,982 45,941,514 84,965,520 152,236,740
Gap (52,370,604) 40,071,848 (19,892,686 (26,273,952 (43,304,997 (2,970,817

Note: The above amounts included only New Taiwan dollar amourtsrhiétle onshore branches
of the Bank (i.e., excluding foreign currency).

Maturity Analysis of Assets and Liabilities
December 31, 2011

(In Thousands of U.S. Dollars)

Total Remaining Period to Maturity
1-30 Days 31-90 Days 91-180 Days 181-365 Days Over 1 Year
Capital inflow on maturity $ 1,750,579 $ 112,25(¢ $ 16,35[7 $ 22,487 $ 1,379 $ 1,598,106
Capital outflow on
maturity 2,115,683 876,640 418,874 358, 150,346 319,290
Gap (365,104) (764,390) (402,517) (328,046) (148,967) 1,278,816

Maturity Analysis of Assets and Liabilities
December 31, 2010

(In Thousands of U.S. Dollars)

Total Remaining Period to Maturity
1-30 Days 31-90 Days 91-180 Day4 181-365 Days Over 1 Year
Capital inflow on maturity $ 2,029,836 $ 206,867 $ 21,802 $ 10,762 $15,699 $ 1,774,706
Capital outflow on
maturity 2,046,088 914,486 343,51} 388,781 5,348 253,961
Gap (16,252) (707,619) (321,715) (378,019) (129,644) 1,520,745

Note: The above amounts are book values of assets and liabitieé by the onshore branches
and offshore banking unit of the Bank in U.S. dollars, without off-balamseunts (for
example, the issuance of negotiable certificate of deposits, bondsks) stoc

34. ACQUISITIONS OF ANOTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTION’'S ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND
OPERATIONS

To integrate its operating resources and promote Bank’s cdinpediss in the financial market, the board
of directors resolved on December 17, 2009 to merge the BahkUmion Bill Finance Corporation
(UBF), with the Bank as the survivor equity. Under the meogerttract, the Bank will acquire UBF’s
assets and liabilities through a share swap at a 1:1.13wdttioeach share of UBF to be exchanged for
1.13 shares of the Bank. The merger contract stated that thisaald be adjusted. On June 23, 2010,
the board of directors approved the change of the swap ratid.id% 1with August 16, 2010 as the merger
date. The merger was completed on August 16, 2010. The asddiahdities recognized by UBF on
the merger date and all rights and obligations as of the merger e@@ssumed by the Bank.

The issued capital of the Bank before the merger was $17,536,62@rttpuspresenting 1,753,662
thousand shares at a par value of NT$10.00, consisting of 1,451,153 thousamzhcghares and 302,509
thousand preferred shares. The Bank increased its capital by $1,94&8%6&nd by issuing 194,838
thousand common shares for the merger. The issued capital &athe after merger amounted to
$19,484,996 thousand. This issuance was approved by the Ministry of Economic Affairs.
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UBF started preparations for its establishment in November 19@4vas established in July 1995. It
began its main operating activities and generated major resemuOctober 11, 1995. Under approval by
authorities, UBF mainly brokers and trades short-term bills; mwnrdes, certifies, guarantees and endorses
commercial paper; brokers government bonds, financial bonds amhgtrébonds; and does
derivatives-related business.

The Bank applied Statement of Financial Accounting StandaFisSENo. 25 - “Business Combinations”
to the merger with UBF. Under SFAS No. 25, since the Bank had tontoUBF before the merger,
the Bank recognized (a) UBF’s assets and liabilities at bable at the Bank’s percentage of ownership
(42.76%) and (b) the remaining assets and liabilities attdbttethe minority interest (57.24%) at fair
value as of the merger date. Also in line with SFAS No. 25gesihe Bank’s accounting policies on
assets and liabilities were more appropriate to use tlae tf UBF, the Bank adjusted the book value of
UBF’s assets and liabilities on the basis of the Bank’s accountinggsolic

Also under SFAS No. 25, the Bank recognized $1,714,571 thousand as theofcastuiring
minority-interest shares and issued 194,838 thousand common shares$@&B8 NbEr share to the
stockholders. The amount of $130,498, resulting from the deduction of the settfais value of
$1,584,073 thousand from the acquisition cost of $1,714,571 thousand, was recorded as goodwiill.

The amounts of the assets and liabilities recognized by #mk Bfter the merger are summarized as
follows:

Fair Value
of Identifiable
Net Assets Book Value Total

Cash and cash equivalents $ 513,308 $ 383,457 $ 896,765
Due from the Central Bank and other banks 572,400 427,600 1,000,000
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 211,721 158,162 369,883
Receivables, net 245,999 183,769 429,768
Available-for-sale financial assets 2,055,740 1,535,700 3,591,440
Held-to-maturity financial assets 118,610 88,605 207,215
Financial assets carried at cost 5,310 3,967 9,277
Other financial assets 13,107 9,791 22,898
Land 4,330 3,234 7,564
Buildings 3,426 2,559 5,985
Machinery and equipment 1,831 1,368 3,199
Transportation equipment 653 488 1,141
Leasehold improvements 665 496 1,161
Other assets 79,658 52,179 131,837
Securities sold under repurchase agreements (2,104,361) (1,572,021) (3,676,382)
Payables (17,120) (22,790) (29,910)
Other financial liabilities (753) (562) (1,315)
Other liabilities (120,45) (95,512 (215,963
Subtotal 1,584,073 $ 1,170,490 $ 2,754,563
Cost of combination 1,714,571

Goodwill $ 130,498 $ 130,498

The foregoing fair values and book values of identifiable nettasvere calculated at the share ratios of
57.24% and 42.76%, respectively, on the basis of the unaudited finstatemhents prepared by UBF. In
calculating the amount corresponding to the share ratio of 42.76%, nkenBd already adjusted the book
value of UBF's assets and liabilities in accordance with the Baoktuating policy.
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35.

All of UBF’s operating results after August 16, 2010 were induihethe Bank's income statement, but
any profit or loss before the merger date was not included. cdfoparison purposes, the combined pro
forma income statements for 2010 are provided as follows (Ut#as for the period from January 1, 2010
to August 15, 2010 had been prepared by UBF and all of thesdathtaeen adjusted in accordance with
the Bank’s accounting policy).

ltems 2010
Net interest $ 6,585,622
Net revenues and gains other than interest 338,362
Net revenues 6,923,984
Bad-debt expenses for loans (409,502)
Operating expenses (4,716,83y
Income before income tax 1,797,645
Income tax expense (423,038
Net income $ 1,374,607
Earnings per share (NT$) $0.90

The pro forma combined statements of income are presentdtu$trative purposes only. That is, this
information merely shows the results of operations under thevgion that the Bank merged with UBF
on January 1, 2010 and represents neither the future financial positidhe result of operations of the
merged Bank and UBF.

ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES

Following are the additional disclosures required by the SecunitéeEatures Bureau:

a. Significant transactions of the Bank and its investees:

1) Financing provided: The Bank - not applicable; investee company - none

2) Endorsement/guarantee provided: The Bank - not applicablesteé®s/ company - Table 1
(attached)

3) Marketable securities held: The Bank - not applicable; investepany: Table 2 (attached)

4) Acquired and disposed of investee investment at costsceispf at least NT$300 million or 10%
of the issued capital: None

5) Acquisition of individual real estates at costs of astlédT$300 million or 10% of the issued
capital: None

6) Disposal of individual real estates at prices of attIBI$300 million or 10% of the issued capital:
None

7) Allowance for service fee to related parties amounting to atNG&&& million: None

8) Receivables from related parties amounting to at IEB$80D million or 10% of the issued capital:
None

9) Sale of nonperforming loans: None

10) Financial asset securitization: None
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11) Other significant transactions which may affect the datisf financial statements users: Table 3
(attached)

12) The information of investees: Table 4 (attached)
13) Derivative financial transactions: Please see Note 6.

b. Investment in Mainland China: None.

36. SEGMENT INFORMATION
The information reported to the Bank’s chief operating decision madke the assessment of segment
performance focuses mainly on operating and profit or loss. Tdwmumiing policies of the reportable
segments are the same as the Bank’s significant accountimgepdafiescribed in Note 2. The Bank's
reportable segments under the Statement of Financial Accounting Stahtard1 - “Operating Segments”
are as follows:

a. Corporate banking unit: Corporate banking, foreign exchange ksjsiteds management and public
treasury business, etc.

b. Consumer banking unit: Consumer banking, financial management andbusiess, credit card
business and auto-loan business, etc.

c. Wealth management and trust unit: Wealth management and trust huedimess
d. Investing unit: Investing business in financial market, etc.

The analysis of the Bank’s revenue and results from continuingitopes by reportable segment was as

follows:
2011
Corporate Consumer Wealth
Banking Banking Management Investing Others Total
Net interest revenues $ 823,744 $ 2,307535 $ (303) $ 2,050,646 $ 1,480,731 $ 6,662,353
Net commissions and fees
revenues 73,907 664,313 434,048 72,142 124,431 1,368,841
Net revenues other than
interest 425,611 61,591 (28,517 (256,333 (926,649 (724,302
Total net revenues 1,323,262 3,033,439 405,228 1,866,450 678,513 7,306,892
Bad-debt expense for loans 458,291 1,010,336 - 61,407 (1,408,534) 121,500
Operating expenses 558,570 1,902,744 312,773 190,915 1,999,010 4,964,012

Income before incometax $ 306,401 $ 120,359 $ 92,455 $ 1,614,128 $ 88,037 $ 2,221,380
Asset (Note) $ - $ - $ - $ - % - 8 -

Note: The Bank provides only the average amounts of deposits amsl flr measuring the amount of
assets and liabilities, and the measured amounts disclosedreptrewould be zero based on the
interpretation (2010) No. 151 issued by the Accounting Research aredlopeent Foundation
(ARDF).
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2010

Corporate Consumer Wealth
Banking Banking Management Investing Others Total
Net interest revenues $ 925599 $ 2,701,759 $ (291) $ 2,001,902 $ 1,021,319 $ 6,650,288
Net commissions and fees
revenues 77,158 833,300 433,111 30,725 111,910 1,486,204
Net revenues other than
interest 371,966 40,802 (21,669 171,315 (1,798,34D (1,235,92p
Total net revenues 1,374,723 3,575,861 411,151 2,203,942 (665,111) 6,900,566
Bad-debt expense for loans 256,591 1,272,395 - 16,664 (1,136,148) 409,502
Operating expenses 540,910 1,866,046 295,209 156,366 1,800,021 4,658,552

Income before incometax $ 577,222 $ 437420 $ 115942 $ 2,030,912 $(1,328,98% $ 1,832,512

Asset (Note) $ - $ - $ - $ - % - 8 -

Note: The Bank provides only the average amounts of deposits amsl flr measuring the amount of
assets and liabilities, and the measured amounts disclosedreptrewould be zero based on the
interpretation (2010) No. 151 issued by the ARDF.

. SIGNIFICANT FOREIGN-CURRENCY FINANCIAL ASSETS A ND LIABILITIES

The significant foreign-currency financial assets and liadslitvere as follows:

2011 2010
Foreign New Taiwan Foreign New Taiwan
Currencies Exchange Dollars Currencies Exchange Dollars
(Thousands) Rate (Thousands)  (Thousands) Rate (Thousands)

Financial assets

Monetary items
UsD $ 1,940,326 30.29 $ 58,772,475 1,972,999 29.152 $ 57,516,867
JPY 5,363,695 0.3903 2,093,450 5,362,449 0.3581 1,920,293
GBP 5,857 46.7678 273,919 6,628 45.2001 299,586
AUD 40,754 30.7746 1,254,188 33,526 29.6913 995,431
HKD 96,228 3.8983 375,126 119,607 3.7499 448,514
CAD 7,916 29.6815 234,959 8,366 29.1665 244,007
SGD 1,122 23.3179 26,163 836 22.7217 18,995
ZAR 398,710 3.7211 1,483,640 167,728 4.4036 738,607
CHF 805 32.2063 25,926 382 31.1120 11,885
THB 41 0.9595 39 115 0.9697 112
NzD 40,887 23.4142 957,336 75,024 22.5636 1,692,812
EUR 19,690 39.2104 772,053 26,644 38.9325 1,037,318

Financial liabilities

Monetary items
UsD 1,604,490 30.29 8,600,002 1,710,777 29.152 49,872,571
JPY 5,910,282 0.3903 2,306,783 5,569,011 0.3581 1,994,263
GBP 5,846 46.7678 273,405 6,638 45.2001 300,038
AUD 40,802 30.7746 1,255,665 33,501 29.6913 994,688
HKD 96,229 3.8983 375,130 119,547 3.7499 448,289
CAD 8,113 29.6815 240,806 8,348 29.1665 243,482
SGD 1,077 23.3179 25,113 837 22.7217 19,018
ZAR 398,817 3.7211 1,484,038 168,140 4.4036 740,421
CHF 780 32.2063 25,121 371 31.1120 11,543
NzD 40,892 23.4142 957,453 75,087 22.5636 1,694,233
EUR 19,646 39.2104 770,328 27,971 38.9325 1,088,981
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UNION BANK OF TAIWAN

ENDORSEMENTS/GUARANTEES PROVIDED
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Stated Otherwise

TABLE 1

Guaranteed Party Ratio of
Limits on Amount of Accumulated .
Endorsement/ . Endorsement/ Endorsement/ Maximum
. Maximum Balance . Endorsement/

No. | Endorsement/Guarantee Provider Name Nature of Relationshi Guarantee Amount for the Year Ending Balance Guarantee Guarantee to Net Guarantee Amount

P\ Provided to Each Collateralized by Equity per the Allowable

Guaranteed Party Properties Latest Financial
Statements

1 |Union Capital (Cayman) Corp. Union Finance and Leasing Subsidiary US$ 16,207 $ 400,000 $ 400,000 $ 400,000 81.48 US$ 16,

International Corporation

P07
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UNION BANK OF TAIWAN

MARKETABLE SECURITIES HELD

DECEMBER 31, 2011

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars and Foreign Currency, UnlesStated Otherwise)

TABLE 2

Issuer’s December 31, 2011
Holding Company Type and Issuer/Name of Marketable Securities R_elanons_hlp Financial Statement Account | Shares/Piece/Units : Percentage of Market Value or Note
with Holding Carrying Value .
Company (In Thousands) Ownership Net Asset Value
Union Finance and Leasing|__ Stock
International Corporation| Masterlink Securities Corporation. - |Available-for-sale financial assets 872 $ 8,149 0.06% $ 8,149 Note 4
Photronics Semiconductor Mask Corp. - Available-for-sale finaasisédts 536 5,655 0.18% 5,65b Note 4
China Chemical Corporation - Available-for-sale financial assets 356 6,077 0.11% 6,077 Note 4
Union Capital (Cayman) Corp. Subsidiary Equity investment - equitigode 50 Us$ 16,207 100.00% US$ 16,20f Note [L
New Asian Ventures Ltd. Subsidiary Equity investment - equitihatk - UsSs$ 2,486 100.00% US$ 2,486 Note 1
WI Harper Group - Unquoted equity instruments 667 2,533 3.33% 3,492 Note 1
ERA Communications Co., Ltd. - Unquoted equity instruments 425 1,415 0.33% 6,132 Note 1
Yung Li Securities Co., Ltd. - Unquoted equity instruments 1 487 0.99% 389 Note 1
Schmidt Technology Co., Ltd. - Unquoted equity instruments 63 - 0.29% 441 Note 1
Bond
Taiwan Life Insurance Co., Ltd. - Financial assets designated at fai 500 46,215 - 46,215 -
value through profit or loss
Union Information Stock
Technology Corporation | Jin Shang Chang Development Co., Ltd. - Availakdaelofinancial assets - - - - Note 4
ELTA Technology Co., Ltd. - Unquoted equity instruments 2,000 17,132 16.33% 25,999 Note 3
eBizServe, Inc. - Unquoted equity instruments 236 654 1.17% 825 Note|3
Xiehe E-commerce Co., Ltd. - Unquoted equity instruments 169 - 7.99% - Note 3
Union Finance International Bond
(HK) Limited HBOS Capital Funding LP - Available-for-saledncial assets 900 USs$ 533 US$ 533 -
Penn West Energy - Available-for-sale financial assets 29 uUsS$ 574 - US$ 574 -
Stock
ING Group N.V. - Available-for-sale financial assets 33 uUS$ 61y - US$ 617 Note 4
Applied Materials Inc. - Financial assets at fair value throqugh 3 US$ 1,181 - Uss$ 1,181 Note 4
profit or loss
Merck & Co., Inc. - Financial assets at fair value through 12 US$ 441 - US$ 441 Note 4
profit or loss
EBAY Inc. - Financial assets at fair value throygh 14 UsSs$ 415 - USs$ 415 Note 4
profit or loss
Beneficial certificates
Global Emerging Markets Debt Fund - Financial assets at faie vhirough 4 US$ 447 - UsS$ 447 Note 4
profit or loss
(Continued)
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Issuer’s December 31, 2011
Holding Company Type and Issuer/Name of Marketable Securities Rglat|on§h|p Financial Statement Account | Shares/Piece/Units . Percentage of Market Value or Note
with Holding Carrying Value .
C (In Thousands) Ownership Net Asset Value
ompany
Union Insurance Broker Stock
Company Asus Computer Corp. - Available-for-sale financial assets 4 $ 82( - $ 820 Note 4
Pegatron Corporation - Available-for-sale financial assets 8 271 - 277 Note 4
New Asian Ventures Ltd. Stock
Grace Thw Holding Limited - Unquoted equity instruments 1,667 $ US2,000 0.81% uUS$ 1,993 Note 2

The Bank’s investees had investments in companies with shares having rbrgadtet prices. The net asset values of these companies were badsetbbovting:
Note 1: Union Finance and Leasing International Corporation:

a. WI Haper Group, ERA Communications Co., Ltd., Yung Li Securities Co., Ltd. andd@dreohnology Co., Ltd. - audited stockholders’ equity as of December 31, 2011.
b. New Asian Ventures Ltd. and Union Capital (Cayman) Corp. - the auditdthalders’ equity as of December 31, 2011.

Note 2: New Asian Ventures Ltd.:
Grace Thw Holding Limited - unaudited stockholders equity as of December 31, 201

Note 3: Union Information Technology Corporation - the basis of the calmulatithe market values of its investments is shown as follows:
a. ELTATechnology Co., Ltd. - audited stockholders’ equity as of December 1L, 20
b. eBizServe, Inc. - the audited stockholders’ equity as of December 31, 2011.

c. Xiehe E-commerce Co., Ltd. - unaudited stockholders’ equity as of Decaini#011.

Note 4: The market values of the listed and OTC stocks intludfnancial assets at fair value through profit or lossardlable-for-sale financial assets were based on the daging prices as of balance sheet date. The market vdlues o
beneficial certificates were based on net asset values as of theebstiaet date.

(Concluded)

- 174 -



TABLE 3

UNION BANK OF TAIWAN

ASSET QUALITY
DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2010
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, %)

Period December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
| Nonperforming Ratio Of. Allowance for | Coverage Ratio Nonperforming Ratio Of. Allowance for | Coverage Ratio
tems Loans Loans Nonperforming Possible Losses (Note 3) Loans Loans Nonperforming Possible Losses (Note 3)
(Note 1) Loans (Note 2) ) (Note 1) Loans (Note 2) )
Corporate Secured $ 400,864 $ 55,975,921 0.72% $ 651,295| $ 47,862,791 1.36%
Banking Unsecured 36,301 23,550,123 0.15% $ 772,445 176.69% 244,446 24,884,802 0.98% $ 769,586 85.92%
Housing mortgage (Note 4) 171,979 99,904,119 0.17%% 970,379 564.24% 258,371 107,260,319 0.24% 109,801 42.50%
Consumer Cash card 29,672 352,450 8.42% 53,017 178.68% 150,215 635,823 23.63% 359,715 239.47%
Banking Small scale creditSIoans (dNote 5) 94513;90511 ; 2,31332;5599 : 133;/1% 47,569 115.91% %987136 522(;4('57725; b O4i?é€(«))/°/o 189,460 211.06%%
ecure , ,333, .13% : ,220, .19%
Other (Note 6) [ Gnsecured 1,999 1,250,498 0.16% 83381  701.09% 5,598 2,288,868 0.24% 7131 40.27%
Depos¢s and Certificates of deposit . 1,103,089 - - - - 892,377 - - -
Remittances
Loan 691,751 192,606,784 0.36% 1,926,791 278.54% 1,409,505 191,092,792 0.74% 1,435,693 101.86%
Nonperforming Ratio Of. . | Nonperforming Ratio Of. .
. . Nonperforming | Allowance for | Coverage Ratio . . Nonperforming | Allowance for | Coverage Ratio
Receivables Receivables . . Receivables Receivables , :
(Note 1) Receivables | Possible Losses (Note 3) (Note 1) Receivables | Possible Losses (Note 3)
(Note 2) (Note 2)
Credit cards 36,116 13,374,834 0.27% 298,653 826.93% 97,189 14,858,556 0.65% 500,784 515.27%
Accounts receivable factored without recourse
(Note 7) i i i i i i i i i i

Note 1: Nonperforming loans are reported to the authorities and disabotbedgublic, as required by the “Regulations Governing the Proceduresifon@institutions to Evaluate Assets and Deal with Nonperformingébonued Loans.”
Nonperforming credit card receivables are reported to the autb@rteedisclosed to the public, as required by the Banking Bureau’s letedddt®, 2005 (Ref. No. 0944000378).

Note 2: Ratio of nonperforming loans: Nonperforming loans + Outstanoliimgalance.
Ratio of nonperforming credit card receivables: Nonperformingtaradi receivables + Outstanding credit card receivables balance

Note 3: Coverage ratio of loans: Allowance for possible lossdedns + Nonperforming loans.
Coverage ratio of credit card receivables: Allowance for possib$es for credit card receivables + Nonperforming credit card/aades.

Note 4: The mortgage loan is for house purchase or renovation and is fulgdsbyg housing that is purchased (owned) by the borrower, the spouse or the rdrem ohihe borrowers.

Note 5: Based on the Banking Bureau'’s letter dated December 19, 2005 (Ref. N@10@50), small-scale credit loans are unsecured, involve small amounts amk exedit cards and cash cards.

Note 6: Other consumers banking loans refer to secured or unsecureth#anxsiude housing mortgage, cash cards, credit cards and smalksdillmans.

Note 7: As required by the Banking Bureau in its letter datéd 1P, 2005 (Ref. No. 094000494), factoring accounts receivable withauirsecare reported as nonperforming receivables within thoeghs after the factors or insurance

companies refuse to indemnify banks for any liabilities on these accounts.
(Continued)
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Not reported as nonperforming loans or nonperforming receivables

December 31, 2011

December 31, 2010

Items

Not Reported as
Nonperforming

Not Reported as
Nonperforming

Not Reported as
Nonperforming

Not Reported as
Nonperforming

\"=)

Types Loans Receivables Loans Receivables
Amounts of executed contracts on negotiated debts not

reported as nonperforming loans and receivables (Note 1) $ 261,682 $ 1,103,340 $ 347,757 $ 1,595,03
Amounts of discharged and executed contracts on clearance

of consumer debts not reported as nonperforming loans

and receivables (Note 2) 62,089 1,085,042 77,085 1,100,915
Total 323,771 2,188,382 424,842 2,695,953

Note 1: Amounts of executed contracts on negotiated debts that are not rapartegherforming loans or receivables are reported in accordance widmitied3Bureau’s letter dated April 25, 2006 (Ref. No. 09510001270).

Note 2: Amounts of discharged and executed contracts on cleafaocasumer debts that are not reported as nonperforming loaiesedvrables are reported in accordance with the Banking Bsriedter dated September 15, 2008 (Ref.

No. 09700318940).
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TABLE 4

UNION BANK OF TAIWAN

INFORMATION OF AND PROPORTIONATE SHARE IN INVESTEES
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Proportionate Share of the Bank and its Affiliates in Investees
Percentage Investment Gain Total
Investee Company Location Main Businesses and Products of Carrying Value L Shares Pro Forma sh Percentage| Note
Ownership (Loss) (Thousands) | Shares (Note 2) ares of
(Thousands) .
Ownership
Financial-related
Union Finance and Leasing International Taipei Installment, leasing and accounts receivabl@00.00% $ 806,789 $ 62,941 70,000 70,000 100.00% Note
Corporation factoring
Union Finance International (HK) Limited Hong Kopigport and export accommodation 99.99% 80,941 2,566 30,002 30,002 100.00% e Not
Union Securities Investment Trust Corporation Taipei Securivesstment trust 35.00% 121,178 5,033 13,096 13,096 43.65% Note
Union Insurance Broker Company Taipei Personal insurance agency 100.00% 24,793 15,969 500 500 100.00% Note
Taiwan Asset Management Corporation Taipei Purchase, sell arayenaonperforming 0.57% 100,000 7,072 10,000 10,000 0.57%
loans from financial institution
Taiwan Financial Asset Service Corporation Taipei Propertyaauct 2.94% 50,000 500 5,000 5,00( 2.94%
Huan Hua Securities Finance Co. Taipei Securities finance 0.5B% 38,454 - 3,942 3,942 0.53%
Sunny Asset Management Co. Taipei Purchase, sell and manage noniperfor 6.44% 3,864 507 386 386 6.44%
loans from financial institution
Taipei Forex Inc. Taipei Foreign exchange brokering 0.81%% 2,113 511 160 160 0.81%
Fu Hua Venture Corporation Taipei Investments 5.00% 23,926 - 3,000 3,000 5.00%
Jiao Da Venture Corporation Taipei Investment 5.00% 3,316 - 1,193 1,193 5.00%
Li Yu Venture Corporation Taipei Investment 4.76% 7,946 - 1,008 1,008 4.76%
Taiwan Futures Exchange Co., Ltd. Taipei Futures clearing 2.04% 71,250 8,168 5,538 5,538 2.04%
Nonfinancial-related
Union Information Technology Corporation Taipei Software and hardware pnedattand 99.99% 14,372 (8,471) 1,000 1,000 99.99% Note
distribution services
Union Real-Estate Management Corporation Taipei Construction plewraxd consulting 40.00% 66,721 12,674 4,000 4,000 80.00% Note
Financial Information Service Co., Ltd. Taipei Information service 2.39% 118,782 11,971 10,774 10,774 2.39%
Taiwan Depository & Clearing Corporation Taipei Financial service %0.25 13,916 928 779 779 0.25%
Lian An Service Corporation Taipei Security service 5.00% 1,501 100 125 125 5.00%
Save Com International Inc. Taipei Telecommunication and netwoidg atien 0.07% 75 - 63 63 0.07%
Taiwan Power Corporation Taipei Electricity-related business 0.0012% 6,123 - 395 395 0.0012%
Global Communication Semiconductor, Inc. U.S.A. Semiconductor business 0.85% 9,185 - 278 278 0.85%

Note: The investees’information shown above is based on audited fin@paek as of December 31, 2011.
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